To:

THE LONDON BOROUGH
www.bromley.gov.uk

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Jo Partridge
Joanne.Partridge@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7694
FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 10 July 2019

Members of the
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Councillor David Jefferys (Chairman)

Councillor Robert Evans (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Marina Ahmad, Gareth Allatt, Yvonne Bear, Mike Botting, Mary Cooke,
Judi Ellis, Keith Onslow and Diane Smith

London Borough of Bromley Officers:

Janet Bailey Director: Children's Social Care

Kim Carey Director: Adult Social Care

Rachel Dunley Head of Service: Early Intervention and Family Support
Dr Nada Lemic Director: Public Health

Clinical Commissioning Group:

Dr Angela Bhan Managing Director: Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group

Harvey Guntrip Lay Member: Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group

Dr Andrew Parson Clinical Chairman: Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group

Bromley Safeqguarding Adults Board

Lynn Sellwood Independent Chair: Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board

Bromley Safeguarding Children Board:

Jim Gamble QPM Independent Chair: Bromley Safeguarding Children
Board

Bromley Voluntary Sector:

Colin Maclean Community Links Bromley
Barbara Wall Healthwatch Bromley

A meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on
THURSDAY 18 JULY 2019 AT 1.30 PM

MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.qgov.uk/



http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD HELD
ON 16TH MAY 2019 (Pages 1 - 16)

QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING
THE MEETING

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions that are not specific to reports
on the agenda must have been received in writing 10 working days before the date of
the meeting.

Questions specifically relating to reports on the agenda should be received within two
working days of the normal publication date of the agenda. Please ensure that
questions specifically on reports on the agenda are received by the Democratic
Services Team by 5pm on Friday 12th July 2019.

BROMLEY CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP: ANNUAL ENGAGEMENT
REPORT 2018/19 (Pages 17 - 82)

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD UPDATE (Pages 83 - 90)

DELAYED TRANSFER OF CARE (DTOC) PERFORMANCE UPDATE
(Report to follow)

ONE BROMLEY / SYSTEM REFORM

RAVENSBOURNE SCHOOL'S PERIOD POVERTY PILOT SCHEME: INTERIM
UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE)

10

11

12

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS (VERBAL UPDATE)
JOINT MENTAL HEALTH STRATEGY (VERBAL UPDATE)
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

a COLLABORATIVE WORKING - BROMLEY CCG AND LBB PUBLIC
HEALTH (Pages 91 - 96)

b  SPECIAL FREE SCHOOL (Pages 97 - 102)

¢ KING'S COLLEGE HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST: CQC
INSPECTION REPORT



13

14

15

The CQC Inspection Report can be accessed via the following link:

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust: Judgement of CQC

MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 103 - 110)
ANY OTHER BUSINESS

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

1.30pm, Wednesday 21st November 2019
1.30pm, Thursday 30t January 2020
1.30pm, Thursday 19t March 2020


https://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAJ4155.pdf

This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Iltem 3

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Minutes of the meeting held at 1.30 pm on 16 May 2019

Present:

Councillor David Jefferys (Chairman)

Councillor Robert Evans (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Gareth Allatt, Yvonne Bear, Mike Botting,

Mary Cooke, Judi Ellis, Simon Jeal, Colin Smith and Diane Smith

Janet Bailey, Director: Children's Social Care

Kim Carey, Director: Adult Social Care

Dr Nada Lemic, Director: Public Health

Lynn Sellwood, Independent Chair: Bromley Safeguarding
Adults Board

Dr Angela Bhan, Managing Director: Bromley Clinical
Commissioning Group

Harvey Guntrip, Lay Member: Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group

Dr Andrew Parson, Clinical Chairman: Bromley Clinical
Commissioning Group

Janet Tibbalds, Community Links Bromley

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Marina Ahmad, Councillor
Keith Onslow and Colin Maclean — Community Links Bromley. Councillor Simon
Jeal, Councillor Colin Smith and Janet Tibbalds attended as their respective

substitutes. Apologies were also received from Barbara Wall — Healthwatch
Bromley.
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING
BOARD HELD ON 31ST JANUARY 2019

In respect of Minute 80, Councillor Cooke noted that an update on the outcome of
Ravensbourne School’s pilot scheme was due to be provided to the cancelled
meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board on 21t March 2019. The Director:
Public Health advised the Board that the item had been deferred to the meeting on
the 21st November 2019, as more time was needed to see the results of the
initiative.

Page 1



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

Councillor Simon Jeal informed the Board that, along with Councillor Marina
Ahmad, he had attended a Period Poverty Summit at which a number of schools
had met. It was linked to the pilot scheme, but went much wider. The event had
been extremely positive, with two main actions arising. The first was the
installation of dispensers, which was progressing and finances were being looked
at. The second was menstrual education, for which a prototype programme was in
development. It was anticipated that by November 2019, the projects would be
well underway. The Chairman suggested that if there was anything to report, an
interim update should be provided to the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing
Board on 18t July 2019.

The Chairman noted that all Board Members had been provided with a copy of the
One Bromley — Stakeholder Briefing, which he had recently received as a
Governor of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, but also carried the
London Borough of Bromley logo. The LBB Communications Executive informed
the Board that the Communications Team would be looking to include more
Bromley contents in future newsletters, and would be speaking with their
counterparts at the CCG.

The Independent Chair of the Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board highlighted that
in the third paragraph of the newsletter, it made reference to Bromley Third Sector
Enterprise as a partner. However, they did not represent the voluntary sector, and
it was suggested that the Voluntary Sector Strategic Network (VSSN) should also
be included. It was agreed that the LBB Communications Executive would feed
this back to the report authors.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 31st January 2019 be
agreed.

4 QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
ATTENDING THE MEETING

No questions had been received.

5 HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY PRIORITY AREA ACTION
PLANS UPDATE

Report ECHS19035

The Board considered an update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
2019-2023.

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2023 had been agreed and
published, and work was now progressing towards its action plans. Following the
last meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board, arrangements had been made for
the delivery of priority areas of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Over several
months, the Director: Public Health had met with the relevant groups focussing on
the priority areas, to discuss who would be best to lead on each area. An action

Page 2



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

plan had been provided to Board Members, setting out the finalised leadership
arrangements for the Strategy, and included the proposed arrangements for
delivery.

An example of the proposed template that each group would use to provide an
action plan update was also presented. All groups leading on an area of delivery
would draft an action plan for each of the priority areas. The Cancer Working
Group had met twice and had discussed their priorities. Members had agreed that
it was a good, simple model that helped focus their minds, and would not burden
the groups. The action plan allowed them to list objectives for two or three key
priorities, and how the objectives would be achieved and measured.

It was suggested that for reporting purposes, a refocussed Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA) Steering Group would coordinate the updates to the action
plans. Once a year, they could provide a high level annual report, or individual
groups could report to the Health and Wellbeing Board directly. It was highlighted
that the JSNA Steering Group would meet every two months, and a
comprehensive Terms of Reference document had been included as an Appendix
to the report. The Independent Chair: Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board
suggested that the membership of the JSNA Steering Group could include the
Voluntary Sector Strategic Network (VSSN), which went much wider than the
Bromley Third Sector Enterprise.

The Chairman considered that the action plans answered the questions of whom,
what and why, but clear timelines were needed. The Chairman felt that the JSNA
Steering Group coordinating the updates was a good idea, and suggested that a
report be provided to the Health and Wellbeing Board every six months, starting
from November 2019. In addition, a report from an individual group could be
brought earlier by exception if required. A Board Member further suggested that a
timescale column be added to the action plans, and that a RAG rating system be
used when the reports were brought back to the Board.

A Board Member noted that there were a couple of priority areas where details on
the process for delivery had not been provided, including the Learning Disability
priority area. The Director: Adult Social Care advised that a first draft of the new
Learning Disability Strategy was currently in development. It was suggested that
this information could be included in the document. The Interim Director of
Programmes advised Board Members that they were currently looking at how to
assess the pathway and to support carers to find the most effective service. This
had been scheduled to be discussed at the meeting of the Council’s Executive in
October 2019.

The Managing Director: Bromley CCG noted that the processes for delivery
matched the outputs and how they were to be measured, which would allow the
lead groups to unpick the areas of focus. The Chairman commented that it was an
overarching strategy which allowed the lead groups, who were those closest to the
priority areas, to look at and develop them, before feeding back. A phased
approach with a rolling programme of timelines for reporting back to the Board
would ensure that issues did not get lost.

Page 3



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

In relation to the cancer priority area, a Board Member asked how ‘areas with high
levels of deprivation and where smoking and alcohol use were known to be higher’
would be targeted. The Director: Public Health responded that work would be
undertaken with GPs in areas with those particular risk factors. Practices in the
most deprived areas and with the lowest screening rates would be targeted first, to
improve the screening uptake by patients. The Chairman noted that heat maps
produced a very sensitive model, and allowed this type of information to be
collated.

In response to a question, the Director: Public Health advised Board Members that
the Ottawa model implemented at King’s was a programme that involved clinicians
picking up on patients that smoked whilst they were in hospital, allowing
intervention at an early stage. It was a model that had been developed and
evaluated in Canada, and looked at the patients and their first and secondary
relatives. It was considered to have had a huge impact, but the Clinical Chairman:
Bromley CCG noted that follow up work connected to the model needed to take
place in the community following a patients discharge from hospital.

In response to a question in relation to bowel screening, the Managing Director:
Bromley CCG said that these screenings differed from the colonoscopies that took
place at the Princess Royal University Hospital (PRUH). Bowel screenings mostly
took place at Lewisham and Denmark Hill and were carried out in a timely manner.
Work was being undertaken with the PRUH to reduce the long wait for surveillance
colonoscopies — looking at waiting lists and using private hospitals to carry out
some procedures, and a larger number were being completed as part of the two
week cancer screening. The Clinical Chairman: Bromley CCG noted that the new
FIT tests that identified blood in stools could potentially push down the number of
two week tests, which could help aid the pressure on this service.

Following a discussion, in which Board Members considered how they would like
updates on the action plans reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board it was
agreed that a report be provided every six months, starting from November 2019,
with reports provided by an individual group by exception, if required.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

6 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT UPDATE
Report ECHS19036

The Board considered an update on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA).

It had been agreed that there would be a three yearly update cycle for the main
sections of the JSNA, with further needs assessments or shorter JSNA chapter
updates on specific areas of needs in between. Work was currently underway to
update smaller chapters of the JSNA and undertake more in depth needs
assessments. The Older People JSNA chapter was last developed in 2016. This
had now been updated, and was published in January 2019 in order to support the

4
Page 4



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

Ageing Well Strategy that had recently been developed.

A Learning Disabilities JSNA chapter was last developed in 2015. This would now
be updated and published in order to support the Joint Learning Disabilities
Strategy that was currently in development. A sexual health needs assessment
was also currently in development. Further pieces of work planned for this year
included an Older People’s needs assessment, GP practice profiles, Ward profiles
and School profiles. Work planned for the following year included learning
disabilities needs assessment, cancer and diabetes. In response to a question, the
Consultant in Public Health confirmed that the sexual health needs assessment
would be linked to the updated SRE guidance, and would be an in depth needs
assessment looking at past, present and future needs.

In response to a question from a Board Member, the Managing Director: Bromley
CCG clarified that ‘excess winter deaths’ were deaths over and above the number
expected in a period. It was noted that there was usually a double peak in excess
deaths — during the winter and summer.

A Board Member enquired if a study had been undertaken to look at where falls
took place outside of the home to identify if there were specific areas of roads and
pavements that were particularly unsteady. The Director: Public Health advised
that an assessment had been undertaken, and a Falls Task and Finish Group had
been established the previous year, which reported back through the Integrated
Commissioning Board. The assessment had provided figures of where falls
happened and had highlighted that outside of the home, falls tended to be rare.
This information was not collected routinely, which was why this specific piece of
work had been undertaken. The London Ambulance Service and hospitals were
able to provide data, but there was not continuous surveillance of it. The Chairman
requested that the update report on the Integrated Commissioning Board
scheduled to be provided to the Health and Wellbeing Board in September be
brought forward to the next meeting on 18t July 2019.

In response to a question, the Consultant in Public Health clarified that ‘upper-tier
Local Authorities were county councils, and city, borough and district councils
were known as 'lower-tier' authorities.

A Board Member noted that it was a very interesting report that provided a good
insight, but questioned if costs had been factored into the transformational
programme. The Leader of the Council responded that he could not say with
certainty as the future demand was not known, or whether it would fall to the
London Borough of Bromley or health partners. The Chairman noted that a green
paper on this topic was currently awaited.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

7 BETTER CARE FUND AND IMPROVED BETTER CARE FUND

Report ECHS19037

Page 5



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

The Board considered a report which provided an overview of the performance of
both the Better Care Fund (BCF) and the Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)
2018/19. The report provided both expenditure and activity for the third and fourth
quarter period, between October 2018 and up to the end of March 2019.

For the BCF, Bromley was responding to four national metrics: the reduction in
non-elective admissions; delayed transfers of care (DToC); the rate of permanent
admissions to residential care per 100,000 population; and the proportion of older
people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital
into reablement / rehabilitation services. The Interim Director of Programmes
advised Board Members that there had been an overall reduction in the number of
non-elective admissions, and the targets set had been met. In relation to DToC'’s,
Bromley were now rated number one compared to the other 32 London Boroughs,
and admissions to residential care and reablement had both exceeded the targets
set. The Bromley Well service, one of the BCF schemes, had provided a Single
Point of Access for local people to prevent them from falling into a crisis and
improve their health, wellbeing and independence, and in every area all the targets
were being met.

The iBCF schemes reflected three grant conditions, that the fund be used only for
the purposes of: meeting Adult Social Care needs; reducing pressures on the
NHS, including supporting more people to be discharged from hospital when the
were ready; and ensuring that the local social care providers market was
supported. One scheme was the Assessed and Supported Year in Employment
(AYSE) Lead and Placements Coordinator, in which the AYSE Lead supported
newly qualified Social Workers and aimed to keep them with the Local Authority.

A Board Member noted that section 4.49 (Support to the Sector) in the
commentary of the report appeared to finish mid-sentence. The Interim Director of
Programmes apologised, and advised that the rest of the sentence would be
included in the minutes of the meeting.

Following the meeting, the Head of Early Intervention, Prevention and Community
Services Commissioning confirmed that the sentence should read:

4.49 In quarter 3 and quarter 4 the service has focused on Service Improvement
Plan showing results across Associate Members and Volunteering. There has
been an increasing volume of Training and Learning workshops from 3 in quarter 3
to 9 in quarter 4.

In response to a question, the Head of Early Intervention, Prevention and
Community Services Commissioning advised that the Learning Disability Pathway
outreach targets were below the requirement in Quarter 3. As a result, partners
had worked together to make improvements, and those that were excelling
provided support in the communities. Quarterly information was also provided and
monitored.

In respect of Continuing Care and individual packages, a Board Member queried
which partners paid for which elements of the packages, and if agreement on this
was easily reached. The Managing Director: Bromley CCG reported that lots more
work was being undertaken collaboratively, but noted that there was more that

6
Page 6



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

could be done. During the previous year, there had been approximately 35
relevant clients in this category, and 21 of the cases had resulted in a 50:50 split of
the costs. For the remainder of the cases, the CCG had paid differing proportions
of the costs. The Director: Adult Social Care stressed that it was essential for
partners to work collaboratively to achieve the best outcome for an individual.

The Head of Early Intervention, Prevention and Community Services
Commissioning confirmed that an agreement had been secured to pilot a Trusted
Assessor process between Bromley and Croydon. This would allow a Social
Worker in Croydon to decide if a patient could be discharged, and reduced the
need for Social Workers to travel out of borough. This had reduced the length of
stay for Bromley patients in out of borough hospitals, as they no longer needed to
wait for a ward assessment.

A Board Member highlighted that in Quarter 4 there had been underspends of
£750k (BCF) and £1.5m (iBCF), and queried why this funding had not been spent.
The Director: Adult Social Care noted that in relation to the BCF budget, there was
sometimes a time lag, but this would be looked at and a response provided to the
Board. The Interim Director of Programmes informed Board Members that the
£1.5m was linked to the Bromley care home, and had been set aside to facilitate
the project if a positive recommendation was made. If not, the funding would be
reallocated. In response to a question, the Interim Director of Programmes advised
Board Members that a Business Case report on the development of a Bromley
care home for adults was imminent, and would be discussed in detail following
sign off from the Interim Chief Executive.

A Board Member asked if there were figures available in relation to the BCF
Employment and Education scheme, regarding employment targets and employer
engagement, and if there was further information on the collaboration with Bromley
and Croydon’s Women’s Aid to develop a support group for women subject to
domestic violence experiencing common mental health problems. The Head of
Early Intervention, Prevention and Community Services Commissioning
responded that this would be confirmed following the meeting.

The Independent Chair: Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board highlighted the work
that had been undertaken with the South London and Maudsley (SLAM). It was an
exemplary piece of work which had achieved its aim, and the team should be
commended for the work that they had done.

RESOLVED that the performance and progress of the Better Care Fund and
the Improved Better Care Fund schemes, as well as the financial
performance for Quarters 3 and 4 2018/19 be noted.

8 DELAYED TRANSFER OF CARE (DTOC) PERFORMANCE UPDATE
Report ECHS19038

The report provided an update from the National Department on future DToC
targets. Since communication was received on the 15" May 2018 updating local

Page 7



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

areas that a nationally revised methodology had been agreed to centrally set
DToC targets, there had been no further amendment to them. The measure had
changed this year, and as such so had the target, which was yet to be confirmed
by the NHS.

With regards to local and national performance, there was a continuation of
positive results with each month being ahead of the set target. There continued to
be a reduction in DToCs compared with previous years, with the final quart again
being ahead of the overall target. Out of the 32 boroughs, Bromley was now
ranked the best performing borough in London.

The Chairman noted that due to the Borough’s high population of elderly and
elderly frail resident, it started at a disadvantage so to be ranked the best
performing in London was a really good news story. The Chairman extended his
thanks to all for their collective effort to achieve this.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

9 SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY (SEND)
UPDATE
Report ECHS19040

The Board considered a report which provided an update on the SEND Reforms
work and continued focus on preparation for the local area inspection. The report
had been provided to Board Members for comment and scrutiny, and a number of
questions were raised which the Director: Children’s Social Care would take back
to the Head of Service: Special Educational Needs and Director of Education. A
copy of the questions and responses is provided at Appendix A.

The Chairman requested that an information paper providing an update on the
delivery of the Free Special School be brought to the next meeting of the Health
and Wellbeing Board on 18t July 2019.

RESOLVES that the update be noted.

10 BROMLEY WINTER ASSURANCE PLAN UPDATE
Report ECHS19039

The Board considered a report which provided an overview of the schemes
delivered throughout winter 2018/19 from Bromley CCG and the London Borough
of Bromley winter pressures monies fund through the Better Care Fund (BCF).
These schemes were identified by the Bromley A&E Delivery Board and were
presented for the Board's information. Funding for this year's Winter Resilience
Schemes was £646k for Bromley CCG and £1,027k from the London Borough of
Bromley and were delivered under budget.

Page 8



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

The winter resilience funding was allocated across the health system to ensure
there was additional capacity in the system to ensure patients were seen in the
appropriate care setting. This included schemes to support patients and clients in
secondary, community and primary care. The report looked at the utilisation and
impact of the CCG schemes and the London Borough of Bromley schemes, which
would inform future planning for Winter 2019/20.

Despite the PRUH A&E four hour performance target worsening this winter, all
Type A&E attendances had decreased slightly when compared to the previous
years. Both surgical and medical admissions were comparable to the previous
year’s winter period. Although it was difficult to ascertain a sole attributable reason
for this, as well as the mild weather, the significant added capacity to the system to
support people in the community would have contributed to the lower attendances.
Positively, there was a notable improvement in the reduction of reported Delayed
Transfers of Care (DToC) for winter 2018/19, with an average decrease of 79%
versus the previous year. Compared with 2016/17, winter 2018/19 saw an 82%
reduction of reported DToC's. This had led to a reduction of 416 (75%) lost
hospital bed days compared to the previous year.

The focus on Discharge to Assess Pathway and Community Continuing
Healthcare Assessments had increased the number of patients leaving the
hospital earlier with temporary packages of care whilst the full assessment was
carried out in the community. Over the past two financial quarters, Bromley CCG
CHC had consistently met and surpassed the NHS England target of 85% of full
Decision Support Tool (DST) assessments in the community.

Although all winter schemes offered were in the majority well utilised and showed
positive impact, significant numbers of people still required hospital based care,
especially those with complex health and social care situations. Due to the
complexity and demographic of patients, further work was required to provide a
more integrated response to admission and attendance avoidance. A full review of
the Bromley CCG Winter Resilience Schemes had been provided to Board
Members. For 2018/19 Bromley CCG had commissioned several Resilience
Schemes aiming to provide additional capacity across a range of community
services. This had included increased primary care capacity through additional GP
appointments, an advanced nurse practitioner home visiting service and a
multidisciplinary Bromley @Home Team was piloted to prevent avoidable
admissions from the community and facilitate earlier discharges from the hospital.
An additional nurse post was implemented for Extra Care Housing units to support
proactive and clinical management of patients to reduce LAS call outs. There was
also increased capacity commissioned across urgent care centres and a
performance matron post within the hospital to support patient flow. Other
highlights from the review included there having been an additional 2,260
appointment slots for GP practices and these hub appointments had been 96%
utilised, highlighting that it had been a valuable service.

In relation to winter communications, the CCG had funded a flu advertising
campaign both in print and digitally to encourage the take up of the flu
vaccinations, specifically for over 65s. This work had been extremely beneficial,
with the borough having the highest uptake in London. The CCG had also

9
Page 9



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

designed an information poster for Care Homes called 'Are you concerned about a
resident?'. The poster had listed alternative pathways instead of ringing 999,
where appropriate, and had included a direct line to services such as NHS 111
and Rapid Response.

The conclusion of the Local Authority’s review had been that broadly the areas of
spend were appropriate and provided much needed capacity to the system during
the winter months. The main points of learning included that Intensive Personal
Care had been over utilised, whilst Fast Response Personal Care had been
underutilised. Fast Response Personal Care had most likely been underutilised
due to the increase in utilisation of the Discharge to Access Pathway, to which it
was very similar. Dependent on the evaluation of the Discharge to Access
Pathway, it may be a better use of spend to focus on Intensive Personal Care to
support more intensive need for patients wanting to return home, but needing
intensive support once there to manage for a short period of time after discharge.

Recommendations of the review included the need to start to plan as early as
possible, preferably in the summer, to allow for staff recruitment to increase the
capacity of existing schemes and services. Services needed to be streamlined to
avoid confusion when patients were referred, and for further development of an
integrated urgent and emergency care system in the community that provided a
single point of access to a range of community services. A Board member noted
that the learning and recommendations for next winter stated that ‘a more realistic
approach’ needed to be taken with regards to staff recruitment. The Urgent Care
Lead, Bromley CCG responded that the plan would be built on in advance,
considering different ways of working, to get it up and running before the start of
the winter period. A Board Member queried if the staff required would be available
to be recruited. The Urgent Care Lead, Bromley CCG responded that there were
schemes such as banks for nurses and consultants that could be utilised. The
Managing Director: Bromley CCG said that staffing was a fundamental problem for
the NHS, and noted that it would be more sustainable to get in early, and offer
potential staff the commitment of work over the winter period. The Chairman
highlighted that retention of staff was the number one concern across London.

A Board Member noted that a table of figures had been provided in the report,
listing surgeries uptake of the Advanced Nurse Practitioner (ANP) home visiting
scheme, which indicated that the uptake was significantly lower and patchier than
expected. The Urgent Care Lead, Bromley CCG responded that this had been
followed up, and previously GP clusters had indicated that they liked this service.
Some practices had utilised the service, whereas others had been able to manage
their capacity issues well. The Clinical Chairman: Bromley CCG advised Board
Members that the criteria for Rapid Response referrals had changed, and there
needed to be a greater clarity of services with fewer choices. Practices needed to
understand the services that were available to them, and use them sensibly as a
resource.

A Board Member suggested that the funding allocations for services could be
considered, and if a service was not being used to its maximum, a proportion of its
funding could be transferred to services that were over utilised. The Urgent Care
Lead, Bromley CCG agreed, and said that the flexibility of the services would be

10
Page 10



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

looked at. In response to a question from another Board Member, the Urgent Care
Lead, Bromley CCG clarified that the £10k included in the 2018/19 spend had
been for a deep cleaning service which had been required at a hospital.

In response to a question, the Urgent Care Lead, Bromley CCG advised Board
Members that Hunter Consultancy had been working with King’s College
University Hospitals NHS Trust to review the discharge process, identify
community pathways and improve planning. The Managing Director: Bromley
CCG noted that this was funded by NHS Improvement, and not by the CCG.

The Chairman requested that an update on the Bromley Winter Assurance Plan be
provided to the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 215t November
2019.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

11 CHAIRMAN'S ANNUAL REPORT

The Board considered the Chairman’s annual report of the Health and Wellbeing
Board. Board Members were asked to provide any feedback on the report prior to
it being reported to the meeting of Full Council on 15™" July 2019. The Chairman
extended his thanks to Board Members for the significant contribution they had
made to the Health and Wellbeing Board during the 2018/19 municipal year.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

12 STRATEGIC REVIEW OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Chairman informed Board Members that a recommendation had been made
by the Education, Children and Families Select Committee, for a Co-opted
Member to represent Early Intervention Services to be appointed to the Health and
Wellbeing Board. Following a brief discussion, Board Members agreed that Rachel
Dunley, Head of Service for Early Intervention and Family Support be appointed to
the Health and Wellbeing Board as a Co-opted Member without voting rights.

RESOLVED that Rachel Dunley, Head of Service for Early Intervention and
Family Support be appointed to the Health and Wellbeing Board as a Co-
opted Member without voting rights.

13 EMERGING ISSUES

Board Members were asked to consider any emerging issues that they would like
discussed or presented at future meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Councillor Simon Jeal suggested that an agenda item on street harassment could
be considered for discussion. It was noted that this was not a strategic priority, but
may link with the work being undertaken in relation to violence against women and

11
Page 11



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

girls. The Independent Chair: Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board advised Board
Members that she had been speaking to the LBB Head of Service for Early
Intervention and Family Support in relation to this. Interviews for the role of VOG
would take place the following day, and it was hoped that the successful candidate
would be in post over the next couple of months. The Chairman requested that an
oral update be provided in relation to this topic at the next meeting of the Health
and Wellbeing Board, providing a plan of how it could be taken forward.

The Chairman highlighted that he had received a number of letters from residents
raising concerns about air pollution, particularly outside of schools, and requested
that an oral update or short briefing paper on this topic be provided to the meeting
of the Health and Wellbeing Board on 18" July 2019. The Director: Public Health
responded that work in relation to air pollution was being undertaken by
colleagues in Environmental Services, and she would ask them to take this
request forward.

The Managing Director: Bromley CCG advised Board Members that their Annual
Engagement Report would also be provided to the next meeting of the Health and
Wellbeing Board.
RESOLVED that these items be included on the Health and Wellbeing Board
work programme for 2019/20.
14 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS
A RAMADAN 2019 — A GUIDE FOR SCHOOLS
There was one Health and Wellbeing Board Information item comprising:
e Ramadan 2019 — A Guide for Schools
The Chairman advised Board Members that this document had been referred
to the Health and Wellbeing Board from the Standing Advisory Council on
Religious Education, and was provided for information.
On behalf of Councillor Marina Ahmad, Councillor Simon Jeal noted that the
document was an excellent piece of work, highlighting positive and effective
collaboration. It was requested that information be provided as to how the
document was distributed to schools, and if it was known how many schools

had used the document.

RESOLVED that the Information Item be noted.

15 MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME
Report CSD19028

The Board considered its work programme for 2019/20 and matters arising from

12
Page 12



Health and Wellbeing Board
16 May 2019

previous meetings.

A number of items were added to the forward rolling work programme for the
Health and Wellbeing Board as outlined below:

Meeting on 18t July 2019:

Ravensbourne Pilot Scheme: Interim Update

Integrated Commissioning Group: Update

Free Special School: Update

Street Harassment / Violence Against Women and Girls: Update
Air Pollution: Update

Bromley CCG — Annual Engagement Report

Meeting on 21st November 2019:

e JSNA Priority Areas Report
e Bromley Winter Assurance Plan: Update

The Chairman noted that September’s Health and Wellbeing Board may no longer
be required, and a decision would be made at the meeting on the 18" July 2019
as to whether it should be cancelled.

RESOLVED that the work programme and matters arising from previous
meetings be noted.

16 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There was no other business.

17 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board would be held at 1.30pm on
Thursday 18t July 2019.

The Meeting ended at 3.22 pm

Chairman

13
Page 13



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 14



Minute Annex

Response to questions / points raised at the HWB 16/05/19
Paul Mitchell & Debi Christie 17.05.19

5.2.1 — What strategies are being used to reduce permanent exclusions?

Officers are working with Bromley schools and our alternative education providers to begin a
review of Alternative Provision (AP) in the borough; to explore new ways of working together,
to fully understand the needs of AP children and explore how we may commission AP more
effectively for Bromley children, the aim will be to intervene earlier with this cohort of children
to ensure they receive an appropriate education offer (with suitable support) to reduce the
use of exclusions. An early development from this joint working is a new vocational offer for
KS4 pupils in Bromley which will be in place for September 2019, funded by the £250k per
annum funding agreed by Members for 2 years.

The publication in May of the Timpson Review of School Exclusions and the Government
response signal a step change in Alternative Provision going forward with new school
accountabilities and responsibilities aligned to changes in the funding of AP(through the High
Needs budget). In the future the schools will be accountable for the outcomes of
permanently excluded pupils. Government has indicated this change will be aligned to the
funding changes. Further detail is awaited from the Department for Education, including the
timescales for these changes. A new raft of DfE guidance is anticipated by summer 2020,
including a focus on improving partnership working in local areas for alternative provision.
Officers have commenced dialogue with Bromley schools on these developments.

5.4.2 — More information in relation to the new Local Offer Development Officer, and if this is
a full time post?

The Council is recruiting a Local Offer Development Officer to lead on developing,
maintaining and publicising the Local Offer, including:

e developing and maintaining links with local providers
liaising with families, young people, providers and professionals

e coordinating the production of material for the website and other resources alongside
input from professionals and service users

e leading on the provision of a range of social media platforms to promote the Local
Offer

e implementing a variety of channels in order to obtain, analyse and report on feedback
from stakeholders

The post is permanent, as part of the Customer Engagement and Complaints Service.
5.5.1 — What are the outcomes of the impact of the SEND action plans?

The SEND Governance Board is a multi-agency forum, led by the LBB Chief Executive,
which leads implementation of the SEND reforms in Bromley on behalf of the Children’s
Executive Board. The SEND Governance Board agrees, owns and promotes the SEND
Strategic Vision and Priorities, ensuring the reforms are implemented to benefit children and
young people in the local area. The role of the Board is also to approve and monitor the
implementation and impact of the multi-agency SEND Action Plan to ensure that our work
across the local area is leading to improved outcomes for children and young people. A
performance report is submitted at each Board outlining performance, on an exception basis.
The SEND Governance Board is accountable to the Children’s Executive Board and
provides regular reports on impact and outcomes. The SEND Strategic Vision and Priorities
is now being extended into a three-year strategy for 2019-22 and a refreshed action plan will
be presented to the SEND Governance Board in July 2019.

Page 15



5.5.2 — Reference to the number of Children and Young People with Autism being higher
than neighbours — understand that the specialist provisions are at all boys schools, so what
provision is provided for girls?

Children and young people who have Autism attend a range of settings, including
mainstream, Additionally Resourced Provisions and specialist schools. The specialist
schools in Bromley are all co-educational and we have a range of mainstream schools that
have Additionally Resourced Provisions (ARP) as part of their school. All primary ARPs
support both boys and girls and within the secondary phase, there are two ARPs, one of
which is co-educational and one is located within a boys school. As part of the strategy for
ensuring the right level of specialist provision is available in Bromley, we have reviewed the
level of specialist provision within our ARPs and are seeking to increase provision for young
people who have speech, language and communication needs particularly within the
secondary phase for both boys and girls. Additionally, the Council has been successful in
the first phase of the Free Special School programme, which seeks to open a Key Stage 2
provision for children who have speech language and communication needs with added
complexities including high levels of anxiety and behaviours that challenge. This provision is
anticipated to open September 2021.

9. — (Reference to welcoming comments) an understanding of the curriculum content for
SEND students. Is it tailored?

The curriculum for children and young people who have SEND should be tailored to meet
individualised need. Schools and Settings make reasonable adjustments and individualise
support for children and young people utilising a range of funding and strategies. For pupils
whose needs sit below the threshold for a statutory EHC Plan, the SEN Notional Budget is
used to support needs, underpinned by Quality First teaching. For those who have an EHC
Plan and the support needs are over and above what is ordinarily available in the school or
setting, additional funding can be provided so that the curriculum and support is appropriate
to meet individual needs.

In addition:
- (5.3.1) the Chairman requested that an information paper providing an update on the
delivery of the Free Special School be brought to the next meeting of the Health and
Wellbeing Board on 18" July 2019.

- More information regarding the transition from Children’s Services into Adult
Services, and the provision outside of the 0-25 age range. (The Chairman asked that
the HWB be kept informed of the work currently being undertaken.)

Transition is a key feature across education, health and care, but is an area that has
not seen the same level of focus as some other areas of the SEND Reforms. The
Council and its partners are reviewing the transition process and developing
processes and protocols that ensure young people have their needs met in the most
effective and timely manner. This work is underpinned by a detailed action plan, the
progress of which is scrutinised by the SEND Governance Board.

- In reference to Ofsted telling schools that they can’t discount off roll students — does
this alter schools decisions, and affect the need for SEND money? What are LBB’s
intentions?

There are occasions where the practice described can result in placements needing
to be sought, often very quickly, which draws more heavily on the high needs block.
The additional accountability proposed under the Timpson Review is welcomed by
Officers. We will continue to work with schools on the implementation of the revised
guidance and review of local arrangements described in 5.2.1.

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 5

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
ECHS19058

Decision Maker: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Date: Thursday 18t July 2019

Title:

BROMLEY CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP: ANNUAL
ENGAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19

Contact Officer: Kelly Scanlon, Head of Communications and Engagement, Bromley Clinical

Commissioning Group
Tel: 0203 930 0144 E-mail: Kelly.scanlon@nhs.net

Ward: Borough-wide
1. Summary
1.1 Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is responsible for commissioning health care

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

services based on local needs for the people of Bromley. The CCG has a legal duty under the
Health and Social Care Act to ensure it enables patients and residents to have a voice in
commissioning processes and decisions.

The Annual Engagement report provides a comprehensive record of the work undertaken to
meet these public involvement legal duties in 2018/19 and is attached at Appendix A.

In addition to this report, the CCG has a whole section on its website with information on how to
get involved.

Partners in Bromley are committed to working together to engage patients on integrated
programmes of care and joint commissioning.  This report aims to provide assurance to Board
Members that there is commitment to this approach within the CCG and it is part of our
infrastructure. A communications and engagement sub-group has been established to manage
the engagement needed for the One Bromley programmes. The CCG has subject matter
experts who are experienced in managing patient engagement programmes, constructive
relationships with local community groups and patient representatives and an understanding of
the challenges and approaches to engaging wider with seldom heard communities.

The report has been commended by Healthwatch Bromley

Reason for Report going to Health and Wellbeing Board

To provide members of the Health and Wellbeing Board with information about the range
projects that patients are influencing and highlight examples of good practice that are being
delivered in Bromley.

3.1

SPECIFIC ACTION REQUIRED BY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AND ITS
CONSTITUENT PARTNER ORGANISATIONS

To note the Annual Engagement Report. The report was approved by the CCG’s Governing
Body at its May 2019 meeting.

1 Page 17


mailto:Kelly.scanlon@nhs.net

Health & Wellbeing Strateqgy

1. Related priority: Not Applicable

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable

3. Total savings: Not Applicable

4. Budget host organisation: Not Applicable
5. Source of funding: Not Applicable

6. Beneficiary/beneficiaries of any savings: Not Applicable

Supporting Public Health Outcome Indicator(s)

Not Applicable

Page 18



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

COMMENTARY

Bromley CCG is committed to the meaningful engagement of patients in all elements of the
commissioning cycle. This commitment is reflected in our constitution, our vision and values
and the work carried out through all our teams on a day to day basis.

We ensure patients are influencing and informing our planning, service redesigns,
procurements and delivery of services. We always feedback to those who have worked with us.
This includes checking we have heard what they told us and letting them know how they have
influenced our decisions. We publish reports on our website on the outcomes of all our patient
focus groups and workshops, and produce a quarterly ‘you said, we did’ focused stakeholder
bulletin which is published and circulated widely to local communities and groups in Bromley.

The Annual Engagement Report provides a record of the work undertaken in 2018/19 and the
outcomes and impact of involving the public. It also aims to encourage more people to get
involved in their local health services.

Our grateful thanks to members of our Patient Advisory Group for the time they give up on a
voluntary basis to share their views and help inform our work.

The CCG has received an ‘outstanding’ rating for public and patient involvement from the NHS
England assurance process. This is the second year in a row and Bromley was one of only 10
CCGs in the country to achieve this rating.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on Vulnerable People and Children; Financial and
Legal Implications; Implications for Other Governance
Arrangements, Boards and Partnership Arrangements,
including any Policy and Financial Changes required to
process the item; Comment from the Director of Author
Organisation.

Background Documents: Not Applicable
(Access via Contact
Officer)

3 Page 19



This page is left intentionally blank



Get involved

\Vle are committee:
and understa"e
are. We have e

b s

“The CCG conveys commitment and enthusiasm for engaging with
patients and takes this seriously. Patients are not just clients, they
are also aresource”. Patient Advisory Group member

Published May 2019




NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

WELCOME ...ttt st b e s st e e h e e e e e e be e e as e e ease e se e saneeabeeamseenneesnreesaneenneesnns 2
1. Who we are and WHhat WE 0O ........ccoiiiriiiiiee st 4
2. Understanding the needs of our POPUIAION .........ooieiiiiiiiieee e 5
3. Commitment to puUblic PArtiCIPAION .......c.cccieiiece e 6
4. Planning OUr @NJAGEMENT .......cc.eciiiiieciese ettt ee st e s e ste e re et e sreesseesesseesbeennesreeeseenns 8
S. HOW WE ENJAGE ...ttt e et s e s r e sne e sn e e s me e e nne e nmre e neesnneenees 10
6. Pati@Nt AQVISOTY GIOUP ...cveiuiiteitirtieieeieeieee sttt se et st st e s e s e ssesbesaeebesae e e e e enbesneene e 11
7. StANAArds @Nd AUEES .....cc.uiiieieee ettt b et ae e ae e 13
7.1  Involve the publiC iN QOVEIMANCE .........coiiiiiiiee et e e e e s e st e e e e e e e e e e aneees 14
7.2 Explain public involvement in commissioning plans/business plan ...........ccccocveevieennieeeneen. 14
7.3  Demonstrate public involvement in annual rePOrtS ...........ccoeiiieiiiienieee e 15
7.4  Promote and publicise public iNVOIVEMENL ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiee e 15
7.5 Assess, plan and take action t0 INVOIVE............coeiiiiiiii it 16
7.6 Feedback and EVAIUALE............cuii it 17
7.7  Implement assurance and iMProvemMent SYSTEMIS ..........uiiiieiiieiie e 18
7.8  Advance equality and reduce health inequalities ...........ccccceeeiiiiiiier e, 18
7.9  Provide support for effective INVOIVEMENL ............oooiiiiiiiiie e 19
7.10 Hold providers to account for engaging PAtiENtS ............coiieieiiiieiieee e 20
8. Impact of patient/pUBbIiC VOICES .......ccui i 23
8.1  Transforming PriMary CAre SEIVICES ........ccieiiuuiieeiiiiieessiiieeeeassteeesssbeeeessnsseeeeesssseeessssneeesans 23
8.2  ENngaging With YOUNQ PEOPIE ......eeiiueiieiiiie ittt eneeas 28
8.3 AQEING WEIIN BIOMIBY .......eeiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e e e e e e 34
S o 1= o7 ] (0] 1 /PSPPSR 36
8.5 Medical support to care hOmMe reSIAENES .........eiiieeii i 37
8.6  Health checks for people with learning disabilities ..o, 38
8.7  Informing our COMMISSIONING PIANS ......vviiiiiieiieieiiee et eeaneas 38
8.8  Health and WellDeiNg CeNIIES ........ooiiiiiiiie it e e s nreeeeens 39
8.9  Improving community health SEIVICES. ..........ooiiiiiiiieie e 39
8.10  IMALEINILY SEIVICES ....eiiiieieitiee et ettt e ettt et e et e e st e e s st e e s bt et e s be e e sabe e e sabe e e aabe e e anbee e enbeeesnneeesnneas 40
8.11 ProCuring IMPrOVEA SEIVICES. .......uuueeeiiieieeeaitieeeeestteeeessseeeesassseeeesssssseeeeaassseeeeasssesessnsseeeesans 43
8.12 Supporting patients to take good care of their health................cccooo i, 43
8.13 Improving care across south €ast LONAON...........ccccuuiiiiiiiiie e 44
9. Partnership WOTKING .....cccooiiieieeeee ettt sn b 46
9.1 Bromley communications and engagement NEIWOIK ..........c.ooiuiereeiiieieeinniiiee e sieee e ssieeee s 47
0.2  Patient eXPEeriENCE AALA .........c..vviiiiie e e e e e e e s e e e e e s s e eeeaae e e e e e annrees a7
Page | 1



NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

9.3  Working across south @ast LONAON ..........ccoocuiiiiiiiiiie e sraee e a7
O TR = (0], To [T 7o T g1 0o 0= 4[] o S 48
O T O 4 o= 1o [ TR OPRPOUR PR UPRTRO 48
10.2  PUDBICALIONS ...ttt e e b e e st e s e e eane e e nnn e e e nnnees 49
IO T I o ) - | TR URPRR 50
11. Supporting effective INVOIVEMENT ..o s 51
12.  Reducing health ineQUAIITIES. .........covoiiiiieci e e s 53
12,1 ENQaging COMMUNITIES .......uuiiiiiiiiieeeeiiieieees sttt ee e s eee e e st e e s st e ea e s snbeeeeesnsseeesannneeessannseeeeeanne 53
12.2 Reducing Health INeQUANILIES ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e nnrae e e 54
12.3 Patient impact on reducing health inequalities ... 55
12.4  ACCESSIDIE INTOMMALION ...ttt s e e e s 57
RS T o o (1 o = 1= = U I 58
14. Assurance statement from Healthwatch Bromley ..., 59

Author: Kelly Scanlon, Head of Communications and Engagement
Director: Paulette Coogan, Director of Organisational Development
Clinical Lead: Dr Andrew Parson

Page | 2



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

WELCOME

Welcome to our Engagement Report for 2018/19. The activity and outcomes set
out in this report are testament to the commitment and dedication of local
residents and community and voluntary groups who work with us to influence the
way we plan, deliver and monitor services in Bromley.

Patients and the public are at the core of our developments and planning. Reaching patients early,
listening to what they have to say and acting on what we have heard is a critical component of high
quality commissioning which brings about transformational change and wider improvements to many
more people. Ourwork has been recognised by NHS England, who in July 2018 gave Bromley a
Green Star (outstanding) status for the second year in a row for our public engagement work, one of
only ten CCGs in the country.

In January 2019, the NHS Long Term Plan was published. It sets out a number of ambitions to
ensure everyone gets the best start in life; receives world class care for major health problems if they
need it and are helped to age well. It signals a move away from a one size fits all approach so that
care is tailored for individuals based on what they need and what matters to them. It reinforces the
need for joined up systems of care that focus on individuals and not organisations.

In Bromley we have been focused for some time on providing more care out of hospital from multi-
disciplinary teams that are working closely together to provide proactive and personalised care for
patients. This model of care has been directly influenced by patients and clinicians and strengthened
by seeking views from those using the services. The involvement of the public and patients will
continue to be crucial as we apply this integrated approach across many other programmes of work
through our One Bromley Integrated Care Partnership.

Another ambition in the Long Term Plan is the development of Primary Care Networks, which bring
together neighbouring practices to collaborate and serve larger populations of patients. Based on the
outcomes of our Bromley Primary Care Needs Assessment, where we spoke to many people and
groups including those who often suffer poorer health outcomes and health inequalities, we know that
this model will make a real difference to both our patients and the primary care workforce. The
involvement of patients, including patient participation groups at GP practice level will be critical as
we work with our GPs to implement these changes.

You can read many more examples of how patients are at the core of our planning and delivery of

services in this report. Although we are delighted to have a strong reputation for our commitment to

Page | 3

Page 24


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/one-bromley.htm

NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

involving patients through all parts of our business, we always strive to continuously improve and do
more to ensure all parts of our communities have the opportunity to inform our decision making. Our
focus in 2019 will be to further reach those parts of our population that are not routinely heard and
ensure their voice is influencing our work. My thanks go to all those who give up their valuable time,
on a voluntary basis, to help us do our very best for the people of Bromley.

Dr Andrew Parson
Chair, Bromley CCG

Section 1

1. Who we are and what we do

NHS Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group is a membership organisation made up all the GP
practices in Bromley. We work with our local population and other partners to plan, purchase and
monitor the NHS services our residents need. This report sets out how, over the last year, they have
impacted on our commissioning decisions, leading to improved services for the wider population.

We aim to improve health by:

e Making sure health services in Bromley are high quality, safe and easy to access.

e Waorking with our local community to plan and improve services.

e Having good working relationships with the people who deliver care and other organisations
responsible for local services.

e Making the most effective use of the money we have been given.

Better health: Better care: Better value:

Help people live longer, Provide the right care Use NHS money
healthier lives and support in the right place, wisely and invest in

them to manage their at the right time sustainable effective
own conditions and take by the right person. and efficient services.
care of their health.

Page | 4

Page 25



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Sectioh 2

% e -
f
IS5,

Sk LS il

£ ¥ ik

2. Understanding the needs of our population

When planning our engagement approach, it is crucial we understand the makeup of our population,
their health needs and who is least likely to be heard or experience the worst health outcomes.

We use the Bromley Joint Strategic Needs Assessment as a baseline which provides an assessment
of health needs based on available evidence. It is important information used to help identify groups
at risk of adverse health outcomes and inequalities so that services can be targeted accordingly.
Prior to engagement, an equality impact assessment is undertaken which identifies those groups and
communities who are more likely to be disadvantaged or impacted by any proposed changes. This
helps to inform who we need to engage with.

In 2018, we were chosen as a pilot by NHS England and NHS Right Care to have an in-depth review
of our health inequalities. The outcomes confirmed what we knew — that although Bromley is a
relatively prosperous area, it has a number of areas that experience poorer outcomes. We know that
our communities differ substantially. The north east and north west of Bromley have similar issues
such as higher levels of deprivation and disease prevalence to those found in inner London
Boroughs, whilst in the south, the borough compares more with rural Kent. More information on our
population profile is available on our website. You can read in section 12.2 how we used the
intelligence in this review to proactively target communities that experience higher emergency
admissions to hospital with appropriate information and education about keeping well.

/We have a greater \
/Ensure high \ KPeopIe are living \ Money is

number of
quality services longer and health limited and residents aged
are provided to is improving but T over 65 than any
everyone all of more people are

services is

other London
the time. We set
quality standards
with providers of
care and we
monitor their
performance

against these

Qtandards. J

ragc 1o

living with long
term conditions
and many have
complex health

Qeeds /

increasing

borough and a
growing number of
new births. Both
the very old and
the very young
have a greater
need for health

Qervi ces. j

Page 26



https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/health-in-bromley.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

7 Section 3

3. Commitment to public participation

There is a strong commitment throughout the CCG to public and patient participation. This

commitment is set out in the CCG’s Constitution and Engagement Strategy and reflected in our vision
(see page 7).

Our refreshed Engagement Strategy — ‘Get Involved in Bromley’ 2019 —
2021 was published in November 2018 and developed with the input of
patient representatives. It sets out how we will continue to work with
local people to effectively plan, buy and monitor the right services to
meet local needs.

Our strategic framework for delivering effective public and patient W, | -
participation is as follows:

GET INVOLVED IN
+ Vision for engagement which is reflected in our constitution. BROMLEY
* Clinical lead and a Governing Body lay member with a remit for Public and Patient Engagement Strategy

2019 - 2021

public engagement.

* Engagement Strategy which sets out our approach to
engagement with a focus on outcomes.

+ Patient involvement in our commissioning plans — using the commissioning cycle.

+ Annual Engagement Report (presented to Governing Body and Bromley Health and Wellbeing
Board).

* Embedding our approach across the CCG.

« Strong connections with local stakeholders.

» Updates provided to our Governing Body for assurance twice a year.

Using this framework, our approach to public participation is embedded throughout the CCG.

Page | 6

Page 27


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/nhs-constitution-2.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/public-and-patient-engagement-strategy.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/public-and-patient-engagement-strategy.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/public-and-patient-engagement-strategy.htm

VISION

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

We prioritise patientsin everydecision we
make
We are evidence based

We listen and learn

We are open and transparent

We are inclusive

We strive for improvements

All our developments are reviewed for clinical quality,
access and impact on patients

All our schemes are tested against national best practice,
benchmarking, and most innovative and structured pilot
period, to ensure the maximum benefit follows
investment

We use mechanisms such as our Patient Advisory Group
(PAG) to engage broadly across the spectrum of
potential changes and the priorities of local people, and
we engage with relevant groups on specific areas.

We are committed to being open and transparentin all
that we do. Our Governing Body meets in public and is
well attended by local people and partners. We also hold
a guestion and answer session at these meetings and
post responses on our website. We strictly follow
guidance on declaration of conflicts of interest.

We seek out opportunities to engage with seldom heard
communities including minority ethnic groups, young
people and those who are most likely to suffer from
health inequalities.

Our outcome ambitions set out a major scale of
improvement, which seeksto ensure that we are better
than average for all measures of performance and in the
upper quartile for many.

ENGAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

Engagementis intrinsic to everything we do

Development and use of our Patient Advisory Group as our first port of call for public engagement.
Sustain our strong relationships with partners and the voluntary sector, including Healthwatch Bromley

and Community Links Bromley

Ensure our standards for engaging the public and patients are used by all our staff

We seek continuous improvement

Page | 7

Page 28




NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Section 4

4. Planning our engagement

We use the Engagement Cycle as a way of identifying the key points in the commissioning cycle for
public participation. The Engagement Cycle sets out what is required when engaging patients at

each stage of the
commissioning process. It
underpins our engagement
culture within the CCG and
supports us in turning
engagement into every day
practice.

The Engagement Cycle
identifies key points in the
commissioning cycle for when
patients can influence. The
CCG is responsive to the needs
and wishes of the public and we
ensure that their voice informs
every level of our
commissioning system from
planning, monitoring and buying
services for our local

population.

Working with
communities to
identify needs

& asplrations

Working
with the public

Working
with patients &
B carers to monitor
services

to plan and

transform

Engagement
Strategy
Culture & Systems

Servi

ces

Working
with patients
& the public
to procure
services

Working
with patients
& carers to
improve quality
& safety

Throughout this report, you can read examples of how we are engaging patients in all these stages of
commissioning. Some examples are shown in the following diagram.

Page | 8

Page 29




NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Objective:
To ensure that a broad range of patients and the public are
influencing the development of models of care and redesign of

services. Activity

Objective:
To ensure our strategy and commissioning intentions are informed by
patients and their experiences.

Activity _ We have recruited patients to participate in:

Patients have informed our strategic L.

documents by: _Comm_lssmnmg Service The design of our new Bromley and Orpington
intentions and . Health and Wellbeing Centres

Taking part in discussions to update strategy Plannlng

our Operating Plan development and design The re-design of the Bromley Children and

. Adolescent Mental Health Service
Patients have helped us to refresh

our Engagement strategy Outcome

Patients have as much say as
commissioners when

Outcome Lo I .
designing/re-designing services

Patients have informed our

commissioning intentions and in Bromley
HEALTH
Objective: Objective:

To ensure the patient voice is
part of the procurement
process when selecting an
appropriate provider for
services in Bromley.
Activity

Patients are always involved in our

Developing processes and
mechanisms to ensure that
outcomes from listening to
patients experiences are
informing the way the CCG
contracts with providers.

NEEDS

More information on our work
can be found at
www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk

Activity
We expect all our commissioned procurement processes and receive
providers to involve the public and Contract training to enable them to participate

patients. Examples include: fully. Projects include:

. i . monitoring
Views from service users on experiences of

; . Medical h i
being treated in an acute mental health ward edical support to care home residents
Integrated south east London

NHS 111 service

Outcome
Patients in Bromley are equal partners on
procurement panels for services

Feedback from older people and their relatives about
discharge from the PRUH
Outcome

Feedback is taken into account when agreeing the contract with the
new providers. Improvements are also made based on feedback
received either through complaints or quality alerts

Over the last year, we have also used more coproduction approaches in our work. This includes our
work with children and young people to redesign and improve the support and care they receive for
their emotional and mental wellbeing needs and the development of an Ageing Well Strategy for

Bromley.
. Lhnical Cammissioning Growp
Co-production is for the whale NHS. It i how we should
all be warking - delng with and not for, ar to, peaple
—not just sometimes, but all the time. The recently
published, ‘Co-production Medel' has been develaped
by patient leaders...
David McNally, Head of Experience of Care
at HHS England
Page | 9

Page 30



NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Section 5

5. How we engage

We engage and involve the public and other stakeholders in a variety of ways. This engagement is
critical as it enables us to make decisions which are underpinned by a clear understanding of public
views, concerns and aspirations. Knowing what people think about existing health services in
Bromley is also vital to helping us improve patient experience in the future.

Our approach to patient involvement is always informed by whether patients can influence a process.
If they can or should be able to, we then consider what we already know, using information captured
through previous engagement and patient experience information collected through our providers (ie
friends and family test, patient opinion and complaints). This provides us with a starting point in
order to plan what else we need to find out and who in particular we need to hear from. We then
reach people using different techniques such as surveys, events, focus groups, face to face
interviews, outreach engagement in schools, youth groups, community services, workshops, social
media, articles in the local newspapers and thorough our commissioned services. Critical to the
success of our engagement is maintaining strong and effective relationships with local services,
communities and partners.

Examples of how we engage:

Be clear that there is something that can be influenced.
e Consider the best approach depending on service area, what we need to know and who we
need to hear from.
e Through our Patient Advisory Group.
e Through the voluntary sector, ¥ BROMLEY BORQUGH
charities, Healthwatch and community )
groups including LGBTQ+ groups,
Diabetes UK support groups, MIND,
Mencap, Age UK and Bromley Well
(an organisation we commission to Get involved and have your say on plans for
support people to stay emotionally Bromley’s new NHS centre

Health

Page | 10 & by News Reporter
|

Yl
an

Home News Sport Letters What's On ContactUs Digital Editions @ Our Papers v

Page 31



and physically well and be independent).
e At public events.
e Promotion through the local media.

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

e Through practice participation groups — particularly to improve primary care services.
¢ Through local providers — especially important if we need views from those with lived

experience.
e Schools, youth forums and after school clubs.

e Public places such as libraries and coffee shops (particularly popular with older people in our

area).

o Digital, print, surveys, patient interviews (at home on occasion), information campaigns, social

media etc.

¢ By having Browsealoud on the website we are able to produce information in different
languages and formats required. We have proactively produced material in easy read when

engaging with people with learning disabilities.

e Public question and answer sessions at each of our Governing Body and Primary Care

Commissioning meetings.

e Bromley Maternity Voices (which has a lay chair and lay members as part of the committee).

e Review of complaints from providers.

e The Bromley Communications and Engagement network which is chaired by Healthwatch and
includes the local authority, third sector and local providers. This partnership approach
enables us to reach more communities — especially those who are harder to hear from.

Section 6

GEL _JNWoLEED
AL KT A Sl T

6. Patient Advisory Group

Our patient advisory group (PAG) is one of our most precious resources. It is made up of local

residents who want to make a real difference to local health services and
are willing to give up their time, on a voluntary basis, to do this.

In March 2019, there were 195 members. Anyone who uses Bromley
health services can join the PAG. The PAG provides flexibility for
members in the way they can get involved which helps us to attract

Page | 11

In March 2019 there were 195
people on our Patient
Advisory Group. Membership
is spread reasonably evenly
across the borough.

Page 32



https://www.bromleymaternityvoices.org.uk/

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

membership from people of all ages and those who have work commitments. The range of
opportunities to make a difference include responding to surveys, feeding back on public information,
active involvement in committees, equal partner on procurement panels for services, service redesign
focus groups, testing our approach to engagement and taking place in quality visits to local providers.
Every year we hold a thank you event for those who have been activity involved, which also provides
us with the opportunity to gather views on how we work with members.

In response to feedback from some PAG members, this year we introduced our Patient Conference
and held the first one in January 2019. The event provides us with an opportunity to bring together
PAG and Patient Participation Group chairs and vice chairs (linked to GP practices) together to
feedback the impact of their involvement, ask for their views on how we strengthen the way we
involve them and on our strategic programmes of work. The report on the January event is available
on our website. The outcomes have been shared with a number of decision making groups and
committees.

We support our PAG members to actively participate. We have developed a ‘\Welcome Pack’ for all
new members and have arranged training and other support when required.

What do our PAG members say? | have been involved
in a number of
: procurements which | have been involved in
Z)Tfeﬁ:ﬁftﬁa?ﬁﬂd(’f are very interesting. | @rious focus groups suchb
be shared across other thought the online those on diabetes and
boroughs. system of recording cancer. | was on the
views worked very procurement panel for the
well. diabetes service and
involved throughout the
exercise. I've attended
@eing involved in \ consultation exercises such
rocurement for the _ ; as those for a new supplier
E)ZCG helped me get Ae CCG has rightly I’?CGIV@N for online GP consultations. |
some paid work for recognlthr! for its sterling work also commented on the new
TR NS and for giving the community PAG welcome pack — which
organisation doing the Qpp?rt“n'.m a plaltfolrm to is an excellent idea and
procurements for EEt :nr:/o ved in Bromley's would have been really
catering and cleaning Alelitre(air'?o. those who organise usefulto meas anew
services. | would not meetin Is and semvivnars a%]d II member.
JEUS (IS hope tg] see an even wider
my procurement neENork following
experience with the The voice of Brorﬁley must
kCG Somany thanks/ continue to be heard and
hopefully, to resound and echo
Page | 12 wher.

Page 33


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/PAG%20and%20PPG%20patient%20conference%20event%20report%20-%20January%202019.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/PAG%20and%20PPG%20patient%20conference%20event%20report%20-%20January%202019.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/PAG%20Welcome%20Pack%20PDF.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Section 7

7. Standards and duties

The CCG has a legal duty, as setout in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, to engage with patients
and the public in regard to service provision.

In Bromley, engagement with the public is always undertaken in a meaningful and timely way so that
they have real influence in what we do. Outcomes of engagement are used to help deliver priorities

and improve services. You can read more about the impact and outcomes of involving patients and
the public over the last year in section 8.

NHS England undertakes a robust assurance process to ensure that CCGs are meeting their
statutory duties in regard to public and patient involvement. In 2018, the CCG was rated as Green
Star (outstanding), for the work we are doing. We are delighted with this result but it does not stop us
from continually seeking areas for improvement in how we are involving and listening to all parts of
our local community.

The areas we are measured against by NHS England, in order to meet our statutory duties for public
and patient participation are:

Involve the public in governance.

Explain public involvement in commissioning plans/business plan.
Demonstrate public involvement in annual reports.

Promote and publicise public involvement.

Assess, plan and take action to involve.

Feedback and evaluate.

Implement assurance and improvement systems.

Advance equality and reduce health inequalities.

Provide support for effective involvement.

Hold providers to account for engaging patients.

© oo Nk~ RE

=
©

This section provides information on how we are meeting those requirements.

Page | 13

Page 34



NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

7.1 Involvethe publicin governance

The CCG constitution sets out our commitment to public and patient engagement and a clear vision
for how we will deliver this. This is evidenced in the CCG’s strategic
documents including the Operating Plan, Annual Report and Accounts,
Engagement Strategy and this Annual Engagement Report. We have a
specific section set up on the CCG website which provides a range of
information about how to get involved and the impact that patients have
on commissioning of services.

The Governing Body and Primary Care Commissioning Committee
both include lay members and Healthwatch. Meetings are held in
public with opportunities for questions from those attending. These
meetings are promoted in the local paper, on the CCG website and
through social media. Questions and answers are published on the
CCG website. A report on our public engagement activity and
outcomes is taken to the Governing Body every six months and
Healthwatch Bromley is asked to provide an independent view of our
activity each year.

7.2 Explainpublicinvolvementin commissioning
plans/business plan

The CCG’s Engagement Strateqy sets out our approach to meet our
statutory duties to engage. It reflects the commitment throughout the
whole of the CCG to genuinely and purposefully involve people to
ensure the patient and public voice is influencing decision making. This
commitment is replicated through all our key documents including our
Operating plan and Annual Reports. Patients are actively involved in service redesigns and
developments which are fed into our commissioning plans.

A

Patients have a key role in helping us set our priorities. We use their feedback together with local
and national drivers to help inform our commissioning intentions The development of this year’s
intentions has been informed by ongoing engagement with patients and a priority setting workshop
we held in February 2018. How we used the outcomes of that workshop to inform our priority areas

is available in a report on our website.
Page | 14

Page 35


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/NHS%20Bromley%20CCG%20Constitution%202017.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/About%20us/Gov%20body%20papers/6%20-%20Operating%20Plan.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/annual-report.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/public-and-patient-engagement-strategy.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/how-are-we-doing.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/how-are-we-doing.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Engagement%20Strategy%20and%20Plan%20for%20Bromley%20CCG%20.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/Bromley%20CCG%20Future%20Priorities%20workshop%20-%20event%20report%20PDF.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/Bromley%20CCG%20Future%20Priorities%20workshop%20-%20event%20report%20PDF.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/You%20said%20we%20did%20-%20commissioning%20intentions%20-%20December%202018.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Patients are also always involved in our procurement processes. This includes informing the design
of service specifications and being part of procurement and moderation panels to decide on new

providers of care.

7.3 Demonstratepublicinvolvementin annualreports

Our annual report and accounts for 2018/19 includes information on how the public has influenced
our work over the reporting year. This annual engagement report is produced to support that

information and provide more detail on the breadth of work
that is undertaken. Each year we also produce a
summary version of our annual report and accounts to
provide easy to access information about the work of the
CCG. This ‘Review of our Year’ is presented at our Annual
General Meeting and is available on the CCG website. It
includes outcomes from the engagement we have done
over the year.

7.4 Promoteand publicisepublic
involvement

Since setting up the CCG’s Patient Advisory Group four
years ago, we have seen membership rise to 195"
members —many of whom are very active in our work.
Anyone who uses Bromley health services canjoin and
can get involved as much or as little as they like.
Information on how to join the PAG is on the CCG website.
We promote joining the PAG in a variety of ways including
through digital (ie website and social media) and print
advertising (see advert opposite which was used in the
local newspaper), outreach events, through partners and
established groups. PAG members are informed about
training packages offered by NHS England to support how
they get involved.

! Number correct as of March 2019
Page | 15

HAVE YOUR SAY IN BROMLEY!

| . g o N

Do you live in Bromley and use local health services? Are you
interested in having more of a say on how these services are
provided? If so, then we would love to hear from you.

MHS Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is the local NHS
arganisation responsible for planning, monitoring and buying the
vast majority of health services for people in Bromley. The CCG is
committed to putting patients and carers at the centre of all that we
do and involve them in all the different stages of our business.

Invelving you and your family makes complete sense to us because
it enables us to understand what works and what doesn’t work in
our local services, Knowing what you think about health services in
Bromley is also vital to helping us improve patient experience in the
future.

To help us do this, we have a Patient Advisory Group (PAG) which

is made up of local pecple. Our PAG members are influential and
instrumental in our work, We value their contribution and views and
they are always our first port of call when we are seeking a public or
patient apinion,

If you join our PAG, you can get involved as little or as much as

you like and help to influence real change in Bromley services, We
have exciting opportunities always coming up. This can range from
answering an online survey, attending a focus group to look at

the redesign of a service or even sitting on a panel that is making
decisions about what services we procure,

WHAT DO OUR PAG MEMBERS SAY?

“What is important is that you feel you are being listened to, that
your opinfon counts and that you can contribute to future service
improvements. | see it as giving something back to the community”.
“I have been part of various projects which have been interesting and
important. | have attended workshops and focus groups and was also
an evaluator on the re-procurement of community health services in
Bromley. The views of service users and patients are most important
and if people can make time, their experiences are essential to those
looking to improve services™.

If you want to find put more about how patients have influenced
our work, visit our website at www.bromleyceg.nhs.uk

To join the Bromley PAG, please email BROCCG.PatientQuery@nhs.
net, or call 01689 866524 to speak to a member of our team.

INHS|

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group



https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/join-our-patient-group.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

We have also been working with practice based Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) to get more of
their members to join the PAG. In January 2019, we held a patient conference with our PAG and
PPG chairs and vice chairs to get views on some of our strategic programmes, feedback how they
have directly influenced local services and test how we engage with them in order to strengthen our

approach further.

We work through our local providers and voluntary organisations to
reach people with lived experience. Opportunities to have a say on
plans are promoted through community newsletters, charities and
established groups. Over the last year we have focused on reaching
more communities who are seldom heard, particularly children and
young people. This has been aided by liaising with schools, youth
groups and services that work directly with young people. In 2019,
Your Voice in Health and Social Care started to work with our Maternity
Voices Partnership (MVP) to ensure that the voices of women who
suffer poorer outcomes and disadvantages from having a baby are
feeding into our transformational plans for maternity care. At the
annual MVP development day, members assessed how the partnership
can better reach these women and engage them to help inform the
work priorities for the year.

7.5 Assess,planand takeaction toinvolve

We have robust governance processes in place which ensure that our
engagement activity is embedded across the CCG and the
commissioning cycle. We also ensure that our activity meets the
statutory guidelines set out by NHS England for excellence in public
participation. Prior to embarking on any engagement activity, a

LONG TERM IMPACT

In 2015/16, members of our
patient advisory group, the
voluntary sector and
Healthwatch were involved
in the design of our proactive
care pathway. This pathway
supports our most
vulnerable patients by
providing a multi-agency
package of care that meets
their individual needs. The
aim is to keep them well and
avoid any emergency
admissions to hospital.

Since the pathway was set
up over 3,000 patients have
been referred. For those
who previously had
emergency admissions to
hospital, this has reduced by
23.6%.

bespoke communication and engagement plan is produced to support the relevant programme area.
Our engagement approach is informed by an Equality Impact Assessment which ensures that those
people most likely to be impacted by our plans are identified and we do our best to reach them.
These plans are part of our routine business processes, which have been improved further during
2018. By planning public engagement early whilst at a formative stage, we are confident that

patients can influence plans in a meaningful way.

To inform our communication and engagement planning, we consider existing sources of intelligence,
engagement outcomes and other insight. This can include information from surveys, other
programmes of work, friends and family test, engagement undertaken by our partners (such as
Healthwatch Bromley and health care providers), other patient experience or quality data from our

Page | 16

Page 37



NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

providers and the outcomes of equality impact analysis. These can be rich sources of intelligence and
data which can contribute to the overall picture of services. We also use an ‘Engagement Tracker’
at our Bromley Communications and Engagement Network meetings. This enables us to know and
receive the outcomes of engagement being done by our providers, the council, Healthwatch and the
voluntary sector. It helps avoid repetition and ensure we are all benefiting from the patient
experience and feedback intelligence we are gathering. It also supports the development of more
formalised integrated working and sharing of information across the Bromley health and care system.

Through our work we work to embed the national six principles for engaging people and communities
which are:

e Care and support is person centred: personalised, coordinated, and empowering.

e Services are created in partnership with citizens and communities.

e Focus is on equality and narrowing inequalities.

e Carers are identified, supported and involved.

¢ Voluntary, community and social enterprise and housing sectors are involved as key partners
and enablers.

¢ Volunteering and social action are recognised as key enablers.

7.6 Feedbackandevaluate

The CCG has a ‘you said, we did’ page on the website which o

is dedicated to providing feedback on the outcome of our
engagement with the public and patients. Included on that
page are a number of reports which describe the engagement COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES
we have done and how the outcomes have been used to
inform our work. We also produce a guarterly Stakeholder YOU SAID WE DID
Bulletin which is distributed widely to patient representatives, Published October 2018
partners and other stakeholders. It is also published on the
CCG website. The bulletin includes information on the work
we are doing and uses a ‘you said, we did’ format to illustrate
how patient voices have impacted on service development
and delivery. We are also starting to provide more
information on how we have considered feedback but not
been able to use it. We do this using a ‘you said, we
considered, but we couldn’'t do and this is why’. We believe
that it is important to also explain how we have considered
feedback and why it may not have then been used to inform a

Easy read
Consistent

>, standard of care

E Easy access
[~ Appointment availability
= Same members of staff

Care co-ordination

0
[
=
>
=
a
w
n
w
a
1=
o
L
[=]
-
H
=]
=

@
F=
Ead
c
[T
v

Better parking facilities needed

mprove waiting times

Page | 17

Page 38


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/engagement-feedback.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/stakeholder-bulletin.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/stakeholder-bulletin.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

programme of work. We also use events, comprehensive and visual event reports, direct emails,
phone calls, social media etc to report back on outcomes and close the feedback loop.

As well as these publications, we also strive to provide feedback face to face. We use our Patient
Conference held twice a year, to feedback the impact patients have had; and visit schools and
community groups etc to explain how we have used their feedback in our programmes of work.

7.7 Implementassuranceandimprovementsystems

This annual Engagement Report is used to provide assurance to our Governing Body and Bromley
partners on how we are involving local people and meeting our statutory and legal duties. It includes
an assurance statement from Healthwatch. We also produce a mid-year review which is presented to
the Governing Body in public. All of the papers that are considered at the senior CCG committees
and Governing Body have to show evidence of what public engagement has been undertaken to
shape and inform plans.

Periodically we ask for feedback from patients on our engagement activities such as events and focus
groups to see how we can make any necessary improvements. This has included feedback on
venues for events, timing and quality of speakers. At our patient conference in January 2019, we
asked for direct feedback on the way we engage to help us strengthen our approach.

7.8 Advanceequality and reduce health inequalities

Equality impact assessments are required when planning our engagement. This enables us to
assess whois likely to be mostimpacted by our plans and who should be therefore targeted to
provide views. We collect equality information on people who we engage with so that we can
understand which parts of the community we are hearing from and then try to fill any gaps. For
example, during our engagement to inform the Ageing Well Strategy, a review half way through
showed that we needed to hear from more Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups, so we proactively
arranged to meet with groups that include representatives from those communities.

We worked with NHS England as one of the first London CCGs to take part in a ‘deep dive’ around
our health inequalities. The review done by NHS England and NHS Right Care showed that Bromley
is one of the least deprived areas in England. Despite this there are pockets of deprivation. The
review identified some target areas of the borough where our engagement should be focused to help
reduce health inequalities. For example, data showed that Bromley Common, Keston, Orpington
and Cray Valley areas had high ambulatory and urgent care centre attendance rates. Therefore

through our winter planning we focused on those areas with leaflet drops providing information on
Page | 18

Page 39



NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

self-care and flu jabs. Clinical training with practice nurses on managing asthmawas also arranged
focused on those areas.

We have undertaken some outreach work with local community groups that represent the views of
people who are seldom heard. This has included groups supporting young people and Lesbian, Gay,
Bi-sexual, Transgender and questioning+ people, children and young
people and those from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups.

PAG members have been involved in our self-assessment for
meeting requirements of the Equality Act. More information on how
patient engagement has helped with a narrowing in health
inequalities is included in section 12.

7.9 Providesupportfor effectiveinvolvement

All new PAG members are provided with a welcome pack which we
developed to help inform them about the work of the CCG and
provide useful information to support them to get involved. Training
opportunities, offered by NHS England, to enable patient voices to
effectively participate are shared with our PAG members, a number
of whom have attended different courses. Those on our
procurement panels are provided with training and support to use our
Delta procurement system so that they can review bids and score
appropriately.

In the autumn of 2018, we went to GP meetings to remind our
membership about the work we do to engage with patients and meet
our statutory duties. All practices have patient participation groups
(PPGs) and we are keen to encourage those patients to join our
PAG in order to get more involved in borough wide engagement. A
toolkit has been developed for PPGs to help them to function well
and the Head of Communications and Engagement attends the PPG
Network meetings which is a group facilitated initially by the CCG to
bring PPG members together to share good practice.

All new CCG staff are encouraged to meet a member of the
Engagement Team to understand the organisation’s commitment
and approach to public engagement. Guidance templates and

advice is provided to individual staff when planning appropriate
Page | 19

A

Page 40



NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

engagement. The guidance provides clear step by step advice on why we engage, how this should
be done and how it needs to be evaluated and reported. Members of our staff have also attended

training arranged by NHS England to support better patient engagement.

7.10 Hold providersto accountfor engaging patients

We expect all our commissioned providers to involve the public and patients. This is part of our
contractual process. The procurement of new services requires potential bidders to set out how they
will engage the community and add wider social value by using the outcomes of patient engagement
to inform and improve service delivery. Providers collect patient experience data from those using
their services. This is reported at the CCG’s Clinical Quality Review Groups and outcomes are fed
into the work of the CCG to inform redesign and review of services. Gathering this information is
extremely important as it enables the CCG to know how patients are finding local services and what

improvements need to be put in place to improve quality and experience.

Improvements are also made based on feedback received either through complaints or quality alerts.

We also, through the Bromley Communications and Engagement Network, collect information on how

providers are engaging patients directly in local improvements. Examples include:

Oxleas:
HELP IN A
YEARS
¢ Engage with (INHS R:asia
adult service {W-P"CV”"ﬂ lives Services About Advice Patient experience
users to Home > Pafient experience
gather VIeWS How are we doing? Patient eXperience
d How to make a complaint Al Oxleas, the views of our service users and carers are at the heart of improving the
an way we deliver services. Monitoring how we're doing through the eyes of people who

use our services is the most effective way of knowing what we do well and what we
can do better.

Our patient experience team

experiences of
being treated
in an acute
mental health

Our patients’ stories

Qur Board members regularly visit teams throughout the trust. An important step, to
reassure staff that they are able and encouraged o report any risks or concerns they
have. Each visit is undertaken by an executive director, a non-executive director and
the service and clinical directors. This ensures that eur senior management knows
what's going on with patients and frontline staff.

Your comments

Carers

Dr Michael Witney

N 0*'?35 NHS| Type your search here

! Select Language v | Powered by C

Search

»ogle Translate

Membership GPs Jobs News

- L
Dr Michael Witney

Director of Therapies and Trust Patient
Experience Group Chair

ward. This is
to help inform a review of female Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit provision.

Operates Research Net, which is a weekly meeting in Orpington of people with mental health

conditions. The CCG has used this group to inform some of our commissioning.

Page | 20

Page 41




NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

e Recruit service users to take part in pan London workshops for the Perinatal Mental Health
services. Links have been set up with Coccon, a family support charity to recruit further

volunteers who will be co-facilitating workshops for other women and families affected to help
inform the steering group.

e Service users are involved in interview panels.

e Annual members meeting and Improving Quality event in September 2018. Governor
elections over the summer had an excellent response and 12 new governors will join.

e Alived experience practitioner programme is supporting a number of people with lived
experience to be employed by the Trust.

Bromley Healthcare (BHC):

. . .
e Has a patient reference group which Bromley

better fogether Home Your care Explore our services About Jobs Lafest Contact

is supported by Healthwatch
Bromley. The group meets quarterly
to enable local people to share their Tell us your story
experiences of community services
and provide views on proposed
activities and plans.

e Engaged with young people and
patients to review the BHC website.

This included some patlent mystery We value your feedback.
. ) . H If you have had a recent experience of one of our services, we would appreciate it if you
shopping’ to inform the redesign of gl
H If you have something you would like to share with us in more detail please visit
the website.

e BHC uses Care Opinion to gather views on services. Care Opinion has teamed up with
‘Talking Mats’ on a project to support people with dementia to record their views on using
services. This enables people to provide views using pictures and stories.

¢ A mystery shopping exercise was done to get feedback on the new Care Co-ordination
Centre.

Page | 21

Page 42



King’s:

NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

e Ajoint project is taking place with Oxleas to gather feedback from young people attending the
PRUH A&E with a mental health issue. Outcomes of this engagement will help inform any

operational

improvements
and also the co-
design of
children’s

Patients & visitors

Home | AboutUs | Getinvolved

Making a difference to our local community

Qur services

emotional and

» About Us

mental

+ Qur vision for the future

wellbeing

+ The King's story

» How we are organised

services being

~ Get involved

led by the CCG.

NHS

King's College Hospital

NHS Foundation Trust

GPs & referrers | Research About us

‘Working here

Search.. Go

Get involved Translate this page

|Se\ec1. Language e

We want you to be a part of King's by getting involved. Tell us what you think of the care
and services we provide and contribute your skills to help us improve how we manage the
Trust and shape our future, too.

Powered by Google Translate

There are many ways you can do this, from
helping us to provide extra services by
raising funds, to becoming a volunteer at
the Trust and not only helping our patients but

Groups and events
.. . Become a Member
e Ajoint project

Volunteering

QOur charities

also er ing your own personal skills.

If you want to have a say in how the Trust is
governed and to find out more about the
public health issues that affect King's and the
community it serves, you can become a
Member of King's College Hospital NHS

with Age UK

Foundation Trust.

Bromley and
PRUH frailty team is gathering feedback from older people
and their relatives about discharge from the PRUH.
Interviews with service users will take place towards the end
of the year and outcomes will be used to inform the frailty
service development at the PRUH.

King’s hold regular talk back sessions with their members,
patients, governors and staff. Three of these have been
held at the PRUH and covered, cancer care, dementia and
critical care. There was also a community event with around
70 people to meet the new Chairman of the Trust and
discuss special financial measures.

Patients are helping to inform the development of the
‘Getting It Right First Time transformation programme
focused on orthopaedic surgery at Orpington Hospital.

A

Page | 22

Page 43



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Secti;Jn 8

8. Impact of patient/public voices

It is critical that our engagement activity is meaningful and contributes to the delivery of our vision,
strategic priorities and commissioning intentions. Evidence shows that when patients, public and
healthcare staff work together, it results in better services which lead to better health outcomes.
Patient involvement is at the heart of our commissioning and decision making right from planning;
designing pathways, procuring services and delivering improved services.

Throughout this section you can read how involving the public and listening to what they tell us, has
directly contributed to and is supporting delivery of our strategic priority areas and our commissioning
intentions.

8.1 Transforming primary careservices

8.1.1 PRIMARY CARE NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Purpose: In 2017, we launched our Primary Care Needs Assessmentin order to understand

patients’ needs for primary care services and the needs of those delivering the services. This has
been a long term programme to inform a sustainable model of primary care services.

Activity: We engaged with a variety of groups, including those who are seldom heard to inform the
new model of primary care.

They told us:

* Issues with appointments (access, length, number of problems you can talk about)

* Continuity (episode of care, being known at the surgery, vulnerable groups)

+ New ways of working (active signposting, new roles, group consultations, online consultations)
* Prevention

+ Knowledge

Page | 23

Page 44



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

After undertaking a similar process with practice staff, we learnt:

* There are not enough GPs

* There are not enough nurses
* Increasing workload

* Low use of other skilled roles

Who we spoke to What we asked

* Public * How quickly you get an appointment

* Parents of children with complex needs *  Whoyou see (Preferred GP, Any GP,

* People with heart disease Nurse, other)

»  Ethnic minority groups (Afro-Caribbean *  Whether the person who sees you knows
Elders, Asian women) you/your family

* Practice participation group *  Whether the health professional listens to

* People with Learning Disabilities your concerns.

* People with mental illness » Whether you are involved in decisions

* Blind people about your care

* People with multiple sclerosis * Is the service just for when you are ill, or

* Young carers is it for helping you to stay well?

Outcomes: The outcomes of the primary care needs assessment have been fed into the
development of the CCG’s primary care strategy. This strategy sets out that in order to meet the
challenges in primary care, there is more need for:

» GP practices working together to care for whole populations of people in a given locality
* Sharing staff between GP practices

+ Sharing space at practice premises

* Offering services jointly

We tested these outcomes at our Patient Conference held in January 2019 with 58 members of our
Patient Advisory Group and practice participation groups. Generally there was support for this
collaborative practice approach with the caveat that patients should still have the choice of seeing
their own GP in their own practice. A report on the outcomes of those discussions is available on our
website.

Page | 24

Page 45



https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/You%20said%20we%20did%20PCNA%20final.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/You%20said%20we%20did%20PCNA%20final.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

To support more collaborative working, groups of practices in two parts of the borough have applied
for additional support to work more closely together to improve the care that can be provided to
patients. This will include pooling expertise, sharing staff and systems, having better peer support for
staff and help to manage workloads. It will also provide more opportunities to further develop the
services that can be provided to patients.

The NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019 sets out the ambition to develop Primary Care
Networks (PCNs) which will support practices working more collaboratively together, typically serving
communities of around 30,000 to 50,000 people. Bromley general practices have been requested to
work together into PCNs covering registered populations of 30,000-50,000 patients by 15 May 2019,
under the new NHS England GP contract reforms (published in January 2019). From July, significant
additional investment will be made into general practice to facilitate collaborative working and a new,
more resilient model of general practice.

As part of the PCN development, Bromley CCG is encouraging GP practices to meet with their PPG
and seek views from their patients about the mostimportant areas to prioritise in the early months of
PCNs.

A comprehensive ‘you said, we did’ report on the outcomes of the primary care needs assessment is
available on the CCG website.

8.1.2 DIGITAL IMPROVEMENTS

PRACTICE WEBSITES

Purpose: Funding was allocated for the improvement of digital services as part of the NHS GP
Forward View. Based on feedback?, the CCG used this funding to help improve practice based
websites. An audit of practice websites was undertaken which showed that only 11 sites had full
compatibility with smartphones and tablets, there was inconsistent information on local services
including out of hours and lack of translation facilities. The new sites would have improved design
and content management systems. Patients would have better access to information about their
practice and be able to use the on-line services available to them (such as booking appointments etc)
from a variety of devices.

2
Issues with practice based websites were highlighted by the Bromley Healthwatch GP Patient Information Audit and through feedback from practice based
Patient Participation Groups.

Page | 25

Page 46


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/engagement-feedback.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Activity: Two sessions with the
new provider of the websites
were held with practice staff and
patient representatives (including
one member with additional

m You said, we did:

accessibility requirements). The You said: ‘We want websites that are easier to navigate and that
group considered the proposed make information and resources easier to find'.

website designs and content We did: ‘Commissioned a standard template website. This new
management systems and template improves the layout of information and improves
provided feedback. accessibility and navigation on the sites’.

Outcomes: As the new sites become available (the first pilot went live on 5 October 2018) the
practices have been encouraged to work with their PPGs on the content.

GP ONLINE

Purpose: GP online services enable
atients to book or cancel appointments,
g PP

GP online services

request repeat medication and view
medical records. We promoted this facility

extensively during 2017 and in 2018 QU|Ck, easy and secure
wanted to get the views of patients on how jRock G sprokiments

. . * Order repeat prescriptions
they were using it to help to encourage * Access your GP records

more patients to sign up.

Activity: A workshop with Patient Advisory Group members was held and 11 practice participation
groups were visited to gather views. They were asked

e How quick was it to sign up to the service?

e How easy is the service to use?

¢ How has it helped you book GP appointments more quickly?

e Do you useit for repeat prescriptions and has this feature been useful?

Outcomes: Further promotion of the service has led to Bromley currently having 35% of the total
registered population signed up to use Patient Online. Figures show that almost half of the
transactions relate to ordering repeat prescriptions. The benefits to the practice include freeing up the

Page | 26

Page 47



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

telephone lines, saving admin and reception time, more convenience for patients and patients being
able to see their medical records.

GP ONLINE CONSULTATIONS

The response was very quick
Purpose: GP online consultations enable patients to use software and | saw a doctor face to
that will enable them to seek self-help, find their local pharmacy or face earlier than if | had
consult with their GP electronically usually through the practice booked an appointment
website. Practices were offered the opportunity to pilot these online myself.

consultations and we wanted to get the views of patients to inform \/ /
the introduction in Bromley.

Activity: We went out to speak to a number of patient participation groups based in GP practices
and also proactively sought the views of people with mental health conditions to see if this way of
interacting with GP services may encourage more people to seek support.

Outcomes: We are working with nine early adopter practices to pilot this way of working and a clear
evaluation framework has been developed locally to identify the benefits of these systems but also
any barriers or risks before rolling out to all practices across the borough. Between July and
September across four practices in Bromley, there have been 209 visits to the websites to seek
online consultations. Of these visits, 18 patients sought self-help (via local pharmacy or NHS UK)
and 25 had an online consultation with their GP. Although these numbers are relatively small,
we expect them to rise as improved practice websites are rolled out.

Registered patients can submit their non-urgent problems and usually get a response within 48
hours. Initial figures show around 30% of patients go on to require a face to face appointment
after the online consultation, with the other 70% of online consultations being resolved via self-
help, telephone call or prescription sent to their pharmacy of choice.

8.1.3 GP PRACTICE CHANGES

Purpose: The Trinity GP Practice in the north of Bromley was to be taken over by a new provider of

medical services after the GP partners retired. We wanted to let patients know about the changes
and ask for their views on what they valued about the current service and any improvements they
would like to see.

Page | 27

Page 48



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Activity: We held two patients meetings, one in the day and another in the evening. Twenty
patients attended. They asked questions about the appointment system, workforce levels and

continuity of care,
out of hours care,
the new provider
and how services
compared with
other practices.
This feedback
was taken into
account when
agreeing the
contract with the
new providers.

Outcomes: The
new provider took
over on 1 October

m You said, we did:

You said: We need same day appointments in place like we do have now. We
did: It is up to the practice to run an appointment booking system that meets the
needs of their patients. The CCG will work with the new provider to ensure the
appointment system works well.

You said: There needs to be continuity of care and enough GPs to provide this.
We did: The CCG sought a new provider who employs GPs substantively to stay
for the duration of the contract rather than employing short term locum GPs.

2018. All patients were informed by letter and a further three patient meetings were set up to answer
guestions, provide information on the services on offer and how they can get more involved in
shaping services within the practice.

8.2 Engagingwith young people

8.2.1 IMPROVING EMOTIONAL AND MENTAL
WELLBEING FOR CHILDREN AND services. It recognises that all parties
YOUNG PEOPLE have vital contributions to make to

Purpose: Using a co-productive approach to put in

Co-production is an approach that
ensures people delivering services and
those using them are equal partners in
the design, delivery and review of

improve the quality of life for people and
communities.

place an improved model of service delivery to meet the
emotional and mental wellbeing needs of children and young people in Bromley.

We already knew from previous engagement with young people and parents that they want more
focus on support and early intervention in order to reduce the risk of them going into crisis and
needing more intensive support. We wanted to test those views with a broader reach of young

Page | 28

Page 49




NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

people and proactively engage them; service providers; schools; youth services; voluntary sector; and
other organisations that support young people in co-producing an improved model of care.

Activity: The programme of
work commenced in October
2017 and involved talking to a
wide range of young people about
their mental health and emotional
wellbeing. This included going
into schools, running focus
groups and workshops and

asking for views through a survey.

Sessions with held with children
who are particularly seldom heard
including those with

Some groups we have engaged with

Al-Emaan Mosque

AAajwoug

Community Links Bromley
Community Voice Bromley

Information, Advice and
Support Services (IASS)

Bromley and Downham Youth Club

LinCC (children looked after)
Bromley and Lewisham Mind ©

310/ Juaied Aajwol

B’romley Beacon Academy =
Turnaround (travellers) -

2 @ Child’s Outcome Research

Consortium (CORC)

S
Clarion 2
Housing Group F
Bromley Parish Church

desuayy Asjwoug

Knightingale

Bromley Parish Church

“ Bromley Sensory Support Service

communication difficulties, children who are looked after, young carers and those with special
educational needs and disabilities. From this work we co-produced a set of improved outcomes that

would need to be delivered.

A network alliance and co-design group was established and between August and December we
engaged further to feedback to those who we had heard from previously and to seek further views to

inform the development of a new service specification for the services.

This included:

e A churchgroup event in Orpington
= A focus group with students at Nightingale which is an alternative provision for students in
years 7-11 who have a mental health condition and are unable to access mainstream

provision

* Youth Forums at the Bromley and Downham Youth Club

= Bromley Schools

Biggin Hill Primary School

O O O O O O

Page | 29

Bromley Forest School (BEECHE)
Highfield Junior School

Southborough School

St Nicholas CE School (secondary)

St Olaves Grammar School (secondary)
Worsley Bridge Primary School

Page 50


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Bromley_CYP_Services_Final_Spreads.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

= A Bromley and Downham Youth Club Parents Evening event.

» Visit to JusB - A youth charity in Bromley providing activities for young people, between 10
years and 23 years, during term and holiday periods, encouraging young people to develop
their self-esteem, meet new people and discover new skills and talents.

= A CAMHS focus group with young people currently receiving treatment.

= A focus group with students at the Bromley Sensory Support Service.

= Visit to Turnaround - a volunteer based charity project with a proven track record of providing
effective one-to-one numeracy, literacy and English language support to adults and children.

Focus Groups and discussions centred on the design of the service specification and what should be
included. Children that felt most comfortable expressed their thoughts by drawing images of ideal
settings for treatment. Games were used with younger children to encourage them to open up and
share thoughts about what the best service could look like.

Visits were also done to charities and voluntary sector organisations to explain the work we are doing
and gathering their input on behalf of the children and young people they support and interact with.

We also successfully bid for NHS Citizen Exemplar Funding to support the engagement with young
people further which will be used to help us support and mentor some young commissioners who will
be working closely on the co-delivery process and holding the new services to account.

Outcomes: In 2019, we published the new service specification for emotional and mental wellbeing
services for young people which has been directly influenced by children and young people. This
specification outlines our ambitions to commission a service with innovative people and organisations
that are equally ambitious and passionate about children and young people’s wellbeing. It sets out
our objectives to ensure that all children and young people in Bromley are equipped to keep well in
the community, are resourceful and able to bounce back from adversity; can access the right support
at the right time and in the right place for them; feel and are seen as part of the solution; able to
contribute to their and other’s wellness and live in a community where there is positive awareness of
support for emotional wellbeing and mental health.

The work we have done with young people also influenced our successful bid for Mental Health
Trailblazer funding of £2.4 million which will be used in schools to establish Mental Health Support
Teams to develop models of early intervention for mild to moderate mental health issues as well as
providing help to staff who work in the schools. The teams will act as a link with local children and
young people’s mental health services and be supervised by NHS staff.

Page | 30

Page 51


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Bromley_CYP_Services_Final_Singles.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

In Bromley we will also be trialling a four week waiting time for access to specialist NHS children and

young people’s mental health services.

More information on this programme of work is available on the CCG website.

8.2.2 SUPPORTING YOUNG
PEOPLE WITH SPECIAL
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND
DISABILITIES (SEND)

Purpose: As part of our work to
improve emotional and mental
wellbeing services for children and
young people, we arranged a SEND
employability day in May 2018. We
wanted to ensure we heard from
children with special education needs
and disabilities on our plans.

Activity: We worked with the
Information Advice and Support
Service which provides free impatrtial
information, advice and support for
children and young people with
SEND. A day focusedon
employment and employability skills
as a tool to promote and maintain
emotional and mental wellbeing
amongst a group that can struggle to
find work. At the event we welcomed
a range of partners who talked to the
young people about local services
and opportunities for future
employment. This included how the
CCG works, the Bromley Healthcare

m You said, we did:

You said: We want a service specification that is transparent,
clear and about co-producing a service with the community, for
the community. We did: We have produced a service
specification with patients and the public which is open and
transparent and asks for providers that are innovative and that
work together to produce the best service possible for children
and young people.

You said: We need support in finding the right service to use at
the right time. We don’'t know where to start. We did: We are
producing a Directory of Services for emotional and mental
wellbeing services in Bromley which includes advice, support
and details of those organisations that can help.

You said: We need a service that includes those over 18 as
the transition to adult services is poor. We did: Our new
service will be for young people up to the age of 25.

You said: We want to be part of the process of choosing the
right provider for these services and holding them to account.
We did: We have recruited young commissioners who will part
of the decision making process and involved in the delivery of
improved services.

Diabetes and Community Team, Department of Work and Pensions, Bromley and Lewisham Mind,
Bromley Mencap, Bromley Council, Bromley Y and how we safeguard young people. A tour of some

Page | 31

Page 52



https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/transforming-emotional-and-mental-wellbeing-services-for-children-and-young-people.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

clinical areas at the Beckenham Beacon was
undertaken so questions could be asked of different
healthcare professionals.

The young people were asked to share their thoughts
and put into their own words the health and wellbeing
outcomes that had been developed with almost 2,000 children in Bromley.

Outcomes: The views from the young people were fed into the coproduction programme for
improving emotional and mental wellbeing services. A copy of the full report is available on the CCG
website.

ATTENDEES SAID: “We learnt there are 358 different job roles in the NHS and feel more
confident about applying for roles. We learnt that attitude and personality are as important as
skills”

“We learnt that Bromley Mencap’s job match service can help us find and retain work”

“We found out that even though the NHS gets a lot of funding, there is not enough to go around
everyone and people have to make decisions about where it is spent”.

“We felt very proud of the NHS and all the people working there”.

CONTRIBUTORS SAID: “It is important that Bromley is committed to ensuring that children and
young people and families are listened to and involved in the decisions which affect their lives. The
feedback from the day will be used to inform the Preparing for Adulthood pathways work”.
Bromley Council

“It was an absolute pleasure to take part in the Co-Production exercise and not only get to discuss
topics unfamiliar to the students such as emotional intelligence but also to help them achieve the
manifestations of what they held up as mostimportant by building representations of such things
as empathy and self-esteem out of pipe cleaners. There were some really poignant and
imaginative offerings. The provision and care they have received up to this point bares testimony
to the hard work MIND, Bromley Mencap, NHS and CCG are putting in. The idea of working
together as providers, clinicians, and so on in partnership is not new but when it works like this to
achieve these aims it is fantastic’. Department of Work and Pensions

“Being a partner of this event was a great and much needed experience for the Supported
Internship students studying at London and South East Colleges (LSEC), Bromley. Thank you to
the CCG for this opportunity and we hope every Supported Intern can benefit from an event like
this in the future. Joint working with these strong partners will help create more future employment
opportunities for our young people”. Bromley Mencap

Page 53



https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/SEND%20Event%20Report%20v1.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/SEND%20Event%20Report%20v1.pdf

NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

sYoy

ouarefou“healrh,gnd Wéraheay'vmu‘do.,, ‘
¢ can you g0, how m o e

2 ;39Pends on how well {

8.2.3 CHOOSE THE RIGHT SERVICE

Purpose: To encourage younger people to use the right service when they
are ill. We knew from previous engagement with young people that a great
number are not sure what is available and where to go for help.

Activity: We spoke to a group of young people at the Bromley and
Downham Youth Club and also took part in a weekend event with 60 young
people with the National Citizenship Service. We asked young people where
they would go to for different ailments. They were asked to design something
to guide others to use the right service. There were some very inventive
ideas such as phone apps that invited people to send pictures of their
condition or rate how severe they thought their condition was.

Brom
Clinical Commissioning Group

.‘\‘ PPN > ==
Wy @ B

Outcomes: A poster was designed which we used in our winter campaign. It
was published in the local papers as a ‘cut out and keep’ guide. 7R i S fain: ot

You can call NHS 1111

8.2.4 USING SERVICES IN BROMLEY

Ask your local pharmacist for advice for
many common minor ilinesses, such as diarrhoea,
minor infections, headache or sore throats.

Purpose: Following a mock Ofsted inspection §
into children’s safeguarding services, we

Visit the Ur Care Centre if you have a minc
wanted to understand from young people, ) nesriny et
particularly those seldom heard such as young f At

or hurt and th

carers about their understanding of what

services are available to them.

Activity: Although the engagement activity was undertaken in 2017,
the outcomes
from this work
were shared
during 2018 to

© I am worried about the health
of a family member | worry about going to school
I am worried about my own health

E I worry about how I

£
o
S
8
s
£ s
= |l worry that | don’t get < look and feel
inform & 5o
- o enough sleep £ ;1 feel forced in a
. 28 : -
Improvements. " = I worry that I don't have ¢ = 'elationship to do
. £ 2 enough time to do homework g 2 things I do not want
The survey we developed to gather views was = g Snous 2 & todo =
. $ &8 I worry about not e I bout onli @
aimed at young people over 11 and we also =5¢ feeling safe at school 3 3 b‘:ﬁ;::; outonline >
a . ] 2 =
commissioned some engagement with children | & | worry about not having any friends 2, & 2
) . 2 = I worry about not having ;5 = I worry about 5
in primary schools. 182 completed the survey S Z enough food to eat 3 F ga::::jh:lrcgﬁ;slons: 3
- ru u
and over 100 were engaged face to face. 67% I worry about not having =
Page | 33 enough money E

Page 54



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

of the CYP identifying themselves as young carers in the survey reported that they did not feel
supported in their caring role. For those that did feel supported it was generally by another family
member, with only two respondents reporting that they are supported by a professional. In one case it
was a health worker, and in the other case, it was Young Carers Bromley. 85% of young carers
identified in the survey reported that they knew “who to speak to if they needed help or could not
cope”.

Outcomes: The report on outcomes of the survey and face to face engagement is available on our
website. It has been widely distributed to health professionals and through multi-agency networks
such as the Bromley Safeguarding Children’s Board, the Children and Young People’s Programme
Board and all of the organisations who supported implementation of the survey and the face to face
sessions.

The results of the report have been incorporated into the Joint Strategic Health Needs Assessment
(JSNA) for children and young people, whichis used to inform local decision making. A Directory of
Services for young people’s emotional and mental wellbeing is being produced and will be widely
disseminated to schools and colleges. The outcomes of this work have been fed into the
coproduction programme on emotional and mental wellbeing.

8.3 Ageing Well in Bromley
Help shape services for

Purpose: In order to develop a joint Ageing Well Strategy for Bromley, | ©lder people in Bromley
it was critical that local people worked with us and shared their
feedback. The strategy looks at the current and future population trends
and needs across the borough and how best to support people to live

% 'i 0
. ) _ AGETNG WELL =t
happily, healthily and independently. e

Activity: To inform our engagement approach, we held a pre-engagement workshop with 18
members of our Patient Advisory Group. We sought their views on what needed to be in the strategy
and how we could reach older people to gather their views. The outcomes of that workshop are
available on the CCG website. Participants told us to aim the strategy at those over 65, use positive
language as many older people are fit and well and go to places such as coffee shops, support
groups and day centres to get views.

Over seven weeks in the summer of 2018, we worked jointly with Bromley Council to reach people
and gather their views. A survey was informed by patient representatives and published. Mid-way
through the process, we reviewed where feedback was coming in from and proactively targeted
Page | 34

Page 55


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/CYP%20Survey%20report%20-%20Final.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Workshop%20report%20-%20FINAL%20for%20website.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

further groups (those representing BAME communities in particular) to ensure
we captured their views. We targeted a range of groups including Bromley
Breatheasy group, Asian Cultural Association, Age UK fithess classes and
community art groups. We also attended a range of care homes and assisted
living facilities, as well as community hubs such as the Bertha James day
centre.

The outreach engagement was supported by AGE UK and other community
groups and included visiting befriending groups, armchair exercise sessions,
Asian cultural society, cafes and libraries, men in sheds project, day centres,
community centres and lunch clubs.

Around 35 engagement sessions were held in community settings together with
a well-attended public meeting.

Following the end of the engagement process, we held co-design groups involving members of the
public to review the outcomes, test any assumptions and agree the next steps. Outcomes were also
presented to Bromley GPs.

Outcomes:

79% of respondents said they “socialise, participate and make my own choices’ all or most of the
time.

78% said they ‘feel healthy and can get the health and care services | need when | need them’
88% said their ‘home meets their aspirations and needs’.

89% said they ‘are safe and felt safe and trusted people around them’.

The new Ageing Well Strategy, together with the engagement outcomes report will be published in
the spring of 2019. A co-delivery group involving the public will be established to oversee delivery of
the strategy.

Page | 35

Page 56



8.4 Phlebotomy

Purpose: The PRUH phlebotomy
walk in service needed to be
relocated to enable that hospital
space to be used for more critical
hospital services. In order to
assess the impact of making
changes, the CCG asked patients
using the clinic for more information
about why they use that service,
how long they have waited, how far
they have travelled and how they
got there.

Activity: We developed a survey
that was handed out in the

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

m You said, we did:

You said: Waiting times at the walk in clinic at the Princess
Royal University Hospital are too long. We did: This service
has been re-provided through bookable appointments at the
Summercroft GP practice which will dramatically reduce waiting
times.

You said: We want access to both bookable and walk in
phlebotomy services. We did: We have increased the number
of bookable phlebotomy appointments available through GP
practices and retained the walk in clinics at Beckenham
Beacon and Orpington Hospital.

phlebotomy clinic. Questions were tested with one of our Patient Advisory Group members and we
enlisted the help of hospital volunteers to encourage people to complete it whilst they were waiting.
231 patients responded to the survey over a two week period. A full report on the outcomes of this
engagement is available on the CCG website.

Headline feedback showed:

e 67.11% of patients surveyed travel over a mile to the PRUH clinic. 57.33% travelled by car.
22.67% of those parked at the hospital.

e The mostcommon reason patients attended the clinic was convenience (35.40%), closely
followed by my GP/nurse sent me here (33.19%)

o 44.24% of patients waited up to 60 minutes, with a further 18.89% waiting longer than an hour.
2.3% waited in excess of two hours to be seen.

e Short waiting times were identified as the mostimportant factor for patients, followed by short
distance and access to a walk-in service.

e The vast majority of patients (74.66%) said they had no concerns about the service. Ofthose
who did express a concern, in the vast majority of cases this was about waiting times.

Page | 36

Page 57




NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Outcomes: The outcomes of the engagement helped to inform the re-provision of the hospital walk

in service in nearby community settings including bookable appointments at the Summercroft GP
practice which is next door to the Princess Royal University Hospital.

In order to meet the increased demand for community based phlebotomy, the CCG also arranged for
thousands of additional booked appointments to be offered through three GP phlebotomy hubs
located across the borough. Walk in phlebotomy services continue to be provided at Orpington
Hospital and Beckenham Beacon. Patients using the bookable appointment community phlebotomy
service experience minimal waiting times at locations across the borough in Bromley, Farnborough,
Orpington and Penge. Friends and Family feedback tells us that 90.07% of patients waited less than
10 minutes. 96.77% of patients would recommend the service to their friends and family.

A new feature enables patients to directly book their phlebotomy appointment. A text reminder
service is operated by the Booked Appointment Service.

8.5 Medicalsupportto carehomeresidents

Purpose: Toseek views on our plans to commission a new GP service for those people living in
residential care in Bromley. This service would provide general practice care for all care home
residents and those in extra care housing. By having a dedicated GP service there will be a greater
focus on individual needs and more joined up working.

Activity: We held a patient focus group to gather views on what needed to be in the service
specification for the service. Those who took part had either direct experience of residential or care
homes or from family and friends who had used services. Interviews with care home residents were
also undertaken. A patient representative was part of the procurement process. A full report on the
focus group is available on the CCG website.

Outcomes: Anew general practice service specifically for people living in Bromley’s care homes
has been created. We know that people in care homes have a higher rate of hospital attendances
and admission and more long term conditions and medication needs. The GP service will provide
proactive (ward round) and reactive (urgent) care to the 1,800 people living across Bromley’s 40+
homes. The service will use doctors, nurses and pharmacists to work with the care homes as well as
the patients and their families to avoid unnecessary hospitalisation and improve the quality, access
and experience of primary care for these patients.

Page | 37

Page 58


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/Primary%20Care%20Provider%20for%20Care%20Home%20Residents%20-%20enagegement%20report%20for%20website%20-%20August%202018%20V4%20Final%20PDF.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

8.6 Health checks for peoplewith learning disabilities

Purpose: People with learning disabilities (PWLD) are entitled to a NHS health check every year
with their GP. The health check helps to keep them well and find problems early on so the right care
can be provided. The aim was to improve the uptake of these checks by understanding people’s
experiences of the check and finding out why some were not coming forward for one.

Activity: A survey, put into easy read format, was developed and sent out through appropriate
networks to reach people with learning disabilities. The survey was tested by Bromley Mencap prior
to launch.

Outcomes: At the time of publication, the survey has been extended to gather additional views.

The outcomes of the survey will be analysed and used to make any necessary improvements to the
health check service such as:

e Whether PWLD are aware of the health check.

e What promotion we might need to do to increase uptake.

¢ The support we need to provide to help with accessing the health check.

e Learning for GP practices to improve the health check experience for PWLD.

8.7 Informing our commissioning plans

Purpose: It is critical that feedback from patients gathered both through patient experience and
direct engagement is used to help inform our priorities and development of commissioning intentions
with local providers. This helps us to ensure that services are meeting the needs of patients.

Activity: In February 2018, we held an event at Bromley Baptist Church with patient representatives
to seek views on priorities to help inform our Operating Plan.

Outcomes: These views were considered by the CCG'’s leadership and commissioning teams and a
report on the outcomes of the workshop is available on our website. In October, we published a you
said, we did report on how we had used these discussions to inform our commissioning intentions
with local providers.

Page | 38

Page 59


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/About%20us/Gov%20body%20papers/6%20-%20Operating%20Plan.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/Bromley%20CCG%20Future%20Priorities%20workshop%20-%20event%20report%20PDF.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/You%20said%20we%20did%20-%20commissioning%20intentions%20-%20December%202018.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/You%20said%20we%20did%20-%20commissioning%20intentions%20-%20December%202018.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

8.8 Health and Wellbeing Centres

Purpose: The CCGis developing two new

!):‘ Bromley CCG @ y_CCG - Aug 15 v
Health and We"being centres in Br0m|ey_ One Dr Ruchira Paranjape a GP, said about the new Orpington Health and Wellbeing
8% Centre: "Our staff and patients will benefit from having modern and fit for
|n Orp|ngt0n and the other Iocated |n Central purpose premises that will enable us to embrace opportunities to develop our

services further.” ow.ly/bHo130IpOFs

Bromley. These are part of a long-term
programme to improve health services in
Bromley. Both centres will house a range of
primary care, community and hospital care and
wellbeing services including diagnostics.

Activity: Patient representatives have been g ;ﬁﬁ“mﬁ PR

. . I~ = Mﬂ" = — it LTI
recruited to be part of the Project Board for each e = —
Centre. Wider groups of patients have attended % ni:1 Q2
several focus groups for both centres to ATZ, Bromiey CcG @ _ y
) ) ) N ““*  Work on a £3million ﬁ out programme is wel( underway at the new Orpington
influence the design, site layout, accessibility "85 Health and Wellbeing Centre! ow.y/B7NH30IpNR4

and for the Bromley Centre, the location. Their suggestions have been incorporated into the building
plans.

Outcomes: These programmes are ongoing. The Orpington Health and Wellbeing Centre is due to
open towards the end of 2019, and the Bromley Health and Wellbeing Centre a couple of years later.

8.9 Improvingcommunity health services

Purpose: In 2017, the CCG procured community health services for adults and children and
wanted to ensure that these services would meet the needs of Bromley residents.

Activity: Those using these services were asked for their views to inform the new service
specification. This was done through a survey and in face to face sessions at the point of using
services. Now that the new contracts are in place, we reviewed what patients told us during the
engagement process and what has been done in response to that feedback. You can read the
original report on the engagement on the CCG website.

Outcomes: In 2018, we published the ‘you said we did’ report on the outcomes from the community
health services engagement on the CCG website.

Page | 39

Page 60


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/Membership%20Engagement%20Services%20-%20adult%20community%20services%20report.pdf
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/CYP%20Survey%20report%20-%20Final.pdf

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

m You said, we did:

You said: We need easy access to services within a reasonable time when in need, this is
especially crucial for people with ongoing or long-term conditions. We did: Bromley Healthcare
has established the Care Co-ordination Centre. The Centre offers a single point of contact for all
patients, families, carers and professionals. It operates 24 hours a day, 365 days a year with its
core hours of operation being between 8am and 10pm. The Centre arranges all appointments,
manages referrals including the triage of referrals to ensure appointments are offered in a timely
manner.

You said: Some district nurses are late because they are so busy; this makes my appointment feel
rushed. Because no specific appointment times are given | have to stay in all day, for a rushed
appointment. We did: The new Care Co-ordination Centre helps to manage appointments. A
scheduling system is being explored for use in services where home visits are required, such as
district nursing. This system will enable accurate appointment times to be offered to patients, and
enough time with each patient to manage their needs.

8.10 Maternity services

e 00
The CCG funds a Maternity Voices ﬁ
Partnership (MVP) whichis made up of ? ﬁ
service users, patient advocates, statutory 00
partners and maternity services to inform and

im prove the de|ivery of high quality maternity Working in partnership to improve maternity services
care. The MVP meets six times a year and

regularly gathers feedback from service users.

BROMLEY

Purpose: To work in a partnership approach to seek feedback from women in Bromley on their
experiences of maternity services in order to inform services and improve experiences and outcomes.

Page | 40

Page 61



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Activity: Members of the MVP have taken part in a number of different workstreams and activities to
help improve maternity care in Bromley and raise the profile of our work across London. This
includes:

¢ Informal meetings of active service user volunteers

¢ Walked the patch at the Princess Royal University Hospital to hear directly from women and
families about their experiences

e Joined a baby massage group in the Glades to get feedback from mothers and families.

e Beeninvolved in a number of committees related to maternity care to ensure that the user
voice is heard.

e Made contact with targeted groups of parents about their experiences of maternity care.

e Co-produced a training session for GPs on infant feeding.

¢ Provided feedback to the PRUH maternity service on practical improvements that can be
introduced to improve the maternity experience such as information on induction of labour and
signage within the hospital.

o Contributed to research by King’s College London on healthy eating in pregnancy.

Outcomes: Someimprovements have been made based on the feedback collected. This includes:

e Arequest that an alert is put on Badgernet (the electronic maternity notes) to inform clinical
staff if a woman has previously

experienced childhood abuse or
sexual abuse.

¢ Women due to give birth are
informed that they can take fans
into the maternity suites as

these are often too hot. You said: We would find it helpful to know the name of the

* The CCGwill ensurethat baby | igife who will be providing my antenatal care.
formula sponsorship is no

longer used at GP education We did:
events to ensure that consistent
advice is provided in regard to
breastfeeding

e Used social media channels to

m You said, we did:

Introductory letters from midwives have been
amended so that the names of the team are provided.
Signage has been put up in antenatal clinics giving the name
of the midwife running the clinic.

recruit more MVP volunteers,
promote the work of the MVP and inform women about maternity services and new
developments.

Page | 41

Page 62



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

The CCG is keen to ensure that the MVP is reaching women who are seldom heard and who have
poorer outcomes from having a baby. In January 2019, Your Voice in Health and Social Care, a
charitable organisation that specialises in community engagement with the seldom heard, was
commissioned to support the MVP to reach more seldom heard communities and recruit
representatives from these communities to the committee. A new lay chair of the MVP was recruited
in January 2019 after the tenure of the previous chair ended.

8.10.1 Mindful mums

Purpose: The CCGrecommissioned the Mindful Mum Resilience Programme for a further two
years. The programme delivers a peer facilitated, core-resilience coping strategies course designed
to support perinatal women, regardless of mental health diagnosis or history, to stay well during this
high risk period. It also facilitates peer support groups for women with lived experience of perinatal
Mental Health to help others in a similar situation.

The impact of poor mental health can be greater for women during this period, and if left untreated
can in some cases lead to maternal suicide.

Activity: The programme has been co-designed by women with lived experience of perinatal mental
health issues, based on the Mind Resilience Model (2012). It has been a huge success since itwas
launched and over 600 women have benefited from support to look after their wellbeing and build
resilience during a time of great change.

Women who have used Mindful Mums tell us that they really value the social and peer support,
improved confidence and learning new skills. The project has also recruited and trained 29
volunteers, who are local mums with their own experience of perinatal mental health issues.
Volunteers report positive benefits from delivering the Mindful Mum services.

Outcomes: An evaluation of the service shows the positive impact on mums usingit. This includes
an overall increase in their wellbeing scores, improved confidence and feeling generally happier/more
positive.

“Excellent course, | have enjoyed every minute of it. The ladies running the course have been
amazing. Thank you!”

“I have enjoyed the befriending support. We have had some really good sessions and
various outings. | feel | have gained confidence as a mum. | am grateful that such a service
was available to me.”

Page | 42

Page 63



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

8.11 Procuringimproved services

The CCG ensures that patient representatives are part of all procurement panels for new or
redesigned services. During the reporting year, this has included patients involved in procurements
for:

e Tailored dispensing service

¢ Medicine optimisation service

e South east London wide NHS 111 integrated service
e GP service for care homes

e Diabetes education provider

e Improving Referrals Into Safeguarding

Patients are involved as equal partners on the procurements and are responsible for scoring and
moderating the bids that are received. Training on our Delta Procurement system is provided to
enable them to contribute fully.

8.12 Supporting patients to take good care of their health

Our patient heart support group was established in 2016 and continues to go from strength to
strength, with excellent attendance and many meetings are oversubscribed. The CCG established
this group following feedback from patients and also supports a volunteer patient committee to run
the group and plan the speakers for the meetings.

Over the last year, talks at the group have been informed by those who attend and have included
topics such as:

. Angina

. Warfarin and AF medication
. Bromley Well services

. Digital services

. Cardiac medicines

. First Aid

Feedback is collected at each meeting. At a recent meeting, participants shared what benefit they
find from the sessions.

Page | 43

Page 64



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

12
10

8
6
4 .
2
Meeting new Improved overall Being able to ask Other
people health questions

We plan to adopt a similar approach to support patients to take better control of their long term
conditions. This includes a patient experience group for those people being treated for cancer.

8.13 ImprovingcareacrosssoutheastLondon

The CCG is part of the south east London Sustainability and Transformation Partnership along with
Bexley, Greenwich, Lambeth, Lewisham and Southwark CCGs. Our STP is called Our Healthier
South East London (OHSEL). It has evolved from a commissioner-led strategy — established in 2013 -
into a partnership between local commissioners and providers, working with local authorities, patients
and the public. The STP (full version and summary) was published on 4 November 2016 and was
one of the first in the country to be made public. Local people and patients were directly involved in
the development of the plan through attending either a borough focused deliberative event or through
wider community engagement on the case for change.

The models of care developed through OHSEL are the product of several years of partnership
working between clinicans, commissioners, council social care leads, hospital and have been
informed by extensive engagement with local communities, patients and the public. We also continue
to hold south east London wide Equalities Steering and Stakeholder Reference Group meetings to
ensure our plans are assured around patient and public engagement and equalities issues.

In 2018 patients were involved in informing a number of programmes and developments. More
information is available on the OHSEL website and some highlighted are covered below:

8.13.1 Elective orthopaedic clinical network

Orthopaedic surgery is one of the main reasons for people having operations in south east London.
Formed in 2018, our orthopaedic clinical network is working to ensure consistent, high quality
standards in planned surgery across south east London. The network is comprised of healthcare
professionals and a patient representative with personal experience of receiving elective orthopaedic
care at Orpington Hospital. Findings from a focus group held in Orpington Hospital, as well as other

patient feedback, are also informing the orthopaedic clinical network.
Page | 44

Page 65


http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/get-involved/involvinglocalpeople.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

To ensure all orthopaedic patients receive appropriate support and understand how their care will be
delivered, clinicians from our three NHS hospital trusts, supported by our patient representative, have
reviewed and updated patient pre-operative education called “joint school”. All hip and knee joint
replacement patients are strongly encouraged to attend a ‘joint school’ prior to attending surgery. The
changes made will support more patients to have a positive experience of care and achieve best

outcomes from their surgery.

This year the network agreed an ideal pathway for delivering hip and knee replacements. It aims to
adopt this across all our hospitals to ensure patients have access to excellent service where ever

they are treated.

8.13.2 Integrated south east London NHS 111
service

In February 2019, the new integrated south east London
NHS 111 service was launched.

Provided by the London Ambulance Service, the service is
available 24 hours a day and will provide a new Clinical
Assessment Service comprised of GPs, pharmacists and
nurses who will provide clinical consultations to residents.
The service can provide patient information, issue
prescriptions to a pharmacy of choice, book a GP
appointment, and, if necessary, refer people to emergency
services. Even when a GP practice is closed, residents will
be able to access this service and will be directed to NHS
111 and 111 online.

Patients across south east London have informed and
influenced this new service. Two patient engagement
events were held and a survey was sent out to local
people across south east London (SEL). Feedback was
used to inform the development of the specification for the
service which was approved by the south east London
Clinical Commissioning Groups.

After this initial engagement, a ‘you said, we did’ report
was published and groups that have access issues were
targeted for further views. This activity included:

Page | 45

We were fully involved in the development
of the new enhanced NHS 111 integrated
urgent care service (IUC) for south east
London and in the procurement which
awarded the contract to the London
Ambulance Service. Since then, we have
continued to be involved in the
mobilisation of the new service. We have
been impressed with the transparency of
the process and the willingness of
clinicians and managers involved
answering our questions and taking our
views into account. We have felt part of
the team. We hope and believe that the
IUC service now launched will see many
more patients given health advice by
clinicians or booked directly into an
appropriate NHS service. It will serve
patients better and ensure that people get
the right care at the right place for their
needs and therefore make better use of

resources.

Paul Brown and Moh Okrekson - Patient

representatives

Page 66



http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/get-involved/South%20East%20London%20NHS%20111%20update.pdf

NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

o Information sent to Bromley Deaf Access group; the response received included the
importance of providing advice relating to staff training, promotion of the service, and the use
of deaf friendly language.

o Engagement session held with a Viethamese group in Lewisham.

e Information sent to a KeyRing who supported Speaking Up — Southwark (a group for people
with learning disabilities) to get their views on the new design for 111.

e Information sent to Metro (a SEL wide LGBT group).

o Engagement session with Our Healthier South east London Patient and Public Advisory
Group. Two members were recruited to the SEL 111 Programme Board and Integrated
Urgent Care Procurement Evaluation Panel.

All of the feedback received was incorporated into the revised service specification.

Two patient representatives are now permanent members of the programme board. They contributed
to the scoring of the bids for the service and took part in workshops to finalise questions used in the
procurement. Training was provided to enable them to fully contribute to the procurement process.

During the mobilisation of the new service, the patients have sat on the SEL Integrated Urgent Care
(IUC) Mobilisation Programme Board, the Alliance Leadership Team (responsible for building
relationships between 111, the GP out of hours services and GP federations), the Clinical Advisory
Group (responsible for agreeing patient pathways, standard operating procedures and clinical
profiling of services on the Directory of Services) and the Communications and Engagement Group
(responsible for informing stakeholders about the changing service). The patient representatives will
remain on our programme board as we move into the benefits realisation stage of the project. One of
the patient representatives is also a permanent member of the SEL IUC Clinical Governance Group.

Section 9

9. Partnership Working

Effective partnerships are critical to the success of our engagement with residents. We are fortunate
in Bromley to have strong relationships with providers, other commissioners and the voluntary sector.

Page | 46

Page 67



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

This enables us to have more reach into local communities and to share the outcomes of
engagement across the whole of the Bromley health and care system.

9.1 Bromley communications and engagement network

The Bromley Communications and Engagement Network was established by the CCG in 2015 and is
chaired by Healthwatch Bromley. It brings together representatives from providers, the council,
voluntary sector and the CCG to work together on joint priorities, campaigns and engagement with
local people. The Network is sponsored by the Bromley Health and Wellbeing Board and presents a
summary of activity to the Board each year. This is available on our website. The network has an
engagement tracker which is used to record all engagement activity going on across the Bromley
system so that we can share outcomes and avoid duplication.

9.2 Patientexperiencedata

All of our commissioned providers collect patient experience data which is shared with and
considered by the CCG. Healthwatch Bromley produces a comprehensive quarterly Patient
Experience report, using their new Feedback Centre, capturing the experiences of patients using
local services. These reports are considered at the CCG’s Quality Assurance Sub-Committee.
Patient experience data comes from complaints, quality alerts, friends and family tests, patient
opinion etc.

9.3 Working acrosssoutheastLondon

We work with other CCGs in south east London (SEL) in a collaborative way to support our
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP). A number of our Bromley patient
representatives are part of SEL STP programmes. One of our PAG members represented the patient
voice on the recent procurement of SEL NHS 111 services which is described in section8. We also
work collaboratively together through monthly Communications and Engagement workstream
meetings and a quarterly stakeholder reference group which meets to consider and respond to
different programmes of work prior to any further public or stakeholder involvement. Information on
how patients have influenced the various programmes of SEL work is available on the Our Healthier
South East London website.

Page | 47

Page 68


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Get%20involved/Communications%20and%20Engagement%20Network%20-%20Final%20Activity%20report%20-%202018.pdf
https://healthwatchbromley.co.uk/
https://healthwatchbromley.co.uk/
http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/
http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Section 10

10. Providing information

Providing information to the public is another part of our engagement approach. We use a variety of
methods to get information out to local people. We attend events in the borough to inform people

about the work we are doing and encourage - -

them to getinvolved in ourwork. Wehave AT Bttt 0 s eyt
successfully recruited more PAG members o
using this approach.

and information to look at!

GETTING INVOLVED

10.1 Campaigns

We have run a number of campaigns over the
last year, often to coincide with national
campaigns and awareness weeks which are
focused on meeting the known health needs of
Bromley residents. The aim is to provide people
with information about how they can improve
their health, take better care of themselves and
support self-care. We promote these
campaigns through a variety of ways to try and
get the messages out as far as possible.

e News story on our website with links to national data and other relevant information.

e Social media such as twitter. B oo 8 R e 6 S 5

e Through our internal networks as many of =~ s~ eI e e R e s aro e tea e Tredheoienene
our staff live in Bromley.

e Our weekly GP bulletin.

e The Bromley network which includes the

third sector, Healthwatch Bromley, the

council and health providers.

Through an advertorial in the Bromley

News shopper.

Page | 48




NHS|

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Over the last six months, awareness campaigns have included:

e Stay Well this Winter (six month campaign — particularly focused on flu vaccination)
e Bromley Local Offer for children with

special educational needs and
. I h Glnica Commissioning Group
disabilities . ? ‘
e Ask About Asthma Are you aged undei

with a long term cond
Are you aged 65 or over?

e GP Online Services

eligible for a free flu jab. Ask your GP

inequalities intelligence provided by NHS Right [ e i HELP US

protection against flu. You need to have it

Care to inform a targeted winter health every year becausethe flustrains change. G S | i e
. .. . www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk Bromley CCG Qlinkal Director

campaign. This included posting clear

information about keeping well and having a flu jab to a number of households in areas that had

higher rates of emergency admissions to hospital from respiratory conditions.

Get your free flu jab ’
In the winter of 2018-2019, we used health Fu canbssekous. Tt why you ar d / Y

Print this page | Accessibility

10.2 Publications
INHS |

Bromley
o s Clinical Commissioning Group

10.2.1 Stakeholder Bulletin

We produce a quarterly stakeholder bulletin |57 2 P €00 el e
to let the public know about our work and S

the outcomes of patient involvement. This  [siooe T 28

is emailed to PAG members and a range of [‘C

stakeholders including Bromley MPs, key lé

Councmors’ VOIUntary SeCtor groups’ Latest news cessen Find your nearest health services Tweets vy @nHsaromiey_ccg o
HealthW&tC h and Other pal'tnerS . It |S aISO Update on Ageing Well in Bromley - _A """'f Sronuey 00

posted on our website and we tweet about it in order to reach a wider audience.

The bulletin is just one of a number of ways in which we ‘close the loop’ when we seek the views of
patients and the public. We are always seeking innovative ways of feeding back how patients have
influenced our work and over the last year have done this through updates on our website, through
social media, face to face at events and workshops, special newsletters for particular groups, email
directly to those involved and returning to the groups we have talked to. You canread previous
copies of the bulletin on the CCG website.

Page | 49

Page 70


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/stakeholder-bulletin.htm
https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/news/stakeholder-bulletin.htm

10.3 Digital

10.3.1 Website

We provide a wide range of information on our website about how to get involved in our work. This is

NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

all included in a section called Getting Involved. On these pages, we post the outcomes from our

engagement work and advertise
current opportunities to get involved.

We have Browsealoud on our website.
This webscreen reader software is
available on every page. It adds
speech, reading and translation
functions which aim to improve access
and participation for people with
Dyslexia, low literacy levels, English
as a second language and those with
mild visual impairments. Online
content can also be read aloud in
multiple languages. Between 1 April
2018 and 27 February 2019, there
were 1,340 toolbar loads (how many
times someone has launched the
Browsealoud system by clicking on the
logo and expanding the toolbar) and
1,977 speech requests (how many
times someone has asked the system

to perform a function for them, such as convert text to an audio file or change the appearance of the

!] :E Bromley CCG @

uf e

fy

as ‘outstanding’ for the second year running #Bromley(

) 1 1

Jﬂ& Bromley CCG

Last year almost 4,000 patients actively

ul 5

" Patients are at the centre of what we do. Our engagement work has been rated

CCGAGM1

involved and influencing our work
#BromleyCCGAGM18

I":E Bromley CCG @

utar

e
VN

bromleyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved.h.

'::. Add another Tweet :j‘

O 1

" You can get involved byJommg our Patlent Advisory Group. Info:

page). During that period, the most common languages our website pages were translated were:

French (41.7%)

Bengali (25%)

Slovak (16.7%)

Afrikaans (3.3%) Polish (8.3%)

We will use this information when targeting particular communities with health information.

Page | 50

Page 71

v


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

The Browsealoud software helps us meetthe Accessible Information Standard, and can also be used
as atool in Practices to translate leaflets and patient information as required. We have also
produced easy read versions of materials when engaging with people with learning disabilities.

10.3.2 Social Media

We use Twitter to promote our activities and opportunities to engage with local people and other
stakeholders.

On 18 March 2019, we had 4,561 followers on Twitter. Our followers range from members of the
public, local businesses, partner organisations, charities and other NHS organisations across the
country.

Since 1 April 2018 to 18 March 2019, our posts on Twitter have amassed 197,400 impressions. An
impression is every time a user or organisation has been exposed to our content on their Twitter feed.
This has been achieved by localising content, lifting key messages from our initiatives to gather more
interest and joining in with twitter conversations through the use of #hashtags. We also work closely
with partner organisations by retweeting each other’s information to enable it to reach more people.

Section 11

11. Supporting effective involvement

We provide support to all lay members and patients who work with us. The more informed our
patients and public representatives are, the better able they are to meaningfully engage with us on
our commissioning processes. Previously we have produced a toolkit for PPGs and presented to our
staff about the importance of engagement. Over the last year we have continued to provide this
support in a number of ways:

Page | 51

Page 72



NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

STAFF TRAINING MEETINGS | PROCUREMENTS

Promote training
opportunities
available from NHS

England.

Attendance at team
meetings to explain
engagement
approach and go
through programme
engagement
templates and

processes.

We meet with
staff as part of
their induction

process and on

an individual
basis to go
through C&E

plans.

Page | 52

We have offered
training opportunities to
our PAG members
through London wide
training courses. A
number have taken up
this opportunity. We
also trained members
on our Delta

procurement system.

We have 1to 1
meetings to support

people to getinvolved.

Attended and supported
PPG network meetings o
explain how to get more
involved in Bromley wide

issues.

In response to feedback,
setup a Bromley Patient
Conference to bring
together patient
representatives and
provides an opportunity
to explain how they can
getinvolved as well as
the impact of their

involvement?

Training provided on our
Delta Procurement
System to help patient
reps read bids and score

appropriately.

Supportand briefings are
provided by the
programme lead to those
involved in procurements

and service redesigns.

Page 73

We have an out of
pocket expenses
policy to cover
travel and carer
responsibilities for
those who get

involved.




NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Section 12

12. Reducing health inequalities

There are more than 330,900 people living in Bromley, a number which continues to grow. We have
a greater number of older residents than any other London borough and a growing number of children
and families. Despite being a relatively prosperous borough, there are numerous pockets of higher
deprivation and poorer health outcomes.

It is critical that we understand the makeup of our population in order to commission services that will
meet their health needs and deliver high quality care for all. We take action to promote equality and
reduce the gap in health inequalities in all the communities we serve.

We ensure that our actions and working practices meet with the spirit and intention of the Human
Rights Act (1998) and the Equality Act (2010) which consolidates existing equality legislation for
these protected characteristics:

age disability gender

gender reassignment | marriage and civil | pregnancy and maternity
partnerships

o re"gion o _

12.1 Engagingcommunities

Engaging the right communities and hearing the voices of those mostimpacted by our plans is critical
to effective commissioning. We use equality impact assessments prior to any programme
engagement. It helps us identify those mostimpacted so we can reach out and hear what they have
to say. It also enables us to consider inequalities and health inequalities when planning and

Page | 53

Page 74



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

implementing commissioning decisions so that services are accessible and delivered in a way that
respects the needs of each individual and does not exclude anyone. In Bromley, we work through our
voluntary sector organisations to help us reach a range of different communities.

We also proactively seek out groups who have poorer health outcomes and experiences to
understand how improvements can be made. We do this through:

* Providing information about what we are doing in Bromley and how to get involved in a variety
of different formats. This can include written information, support groups, using systems used
by partners (such as the voluntary sector) to reach particular communities.

e Focusing our work on reaching particular communities — such as young people, those with
learning disabilities, older people and people who suffer poorer health outcomes. For
example in 2019, we commissioned Your Voice in Health and Social Care to proactively
engage with women who are more disadvantaged and have poorer health outcomes from
having a baby to help strengthen maternity services.

* Involving patients to help narrow the gap in health inequalities. There are many examples of
this throughout the report, including examples of the longer term impact of patient
involvement.

We collect equality data when engaging so that we can measure who we are hearing from and
identify any gaps. For example this year, we assessed survey responses to the Ageing Well
Strategy midway through the process. This showed us that we hadn’t heard from many people from
a Black, Asian or minority ethnic background. Therefore we set up outreach events to reach
representatives from those communities. It is critical that we continue to reach and develop
relationships with diverse communities, especially those who are seldom heard. This entails
proactively planning our involvement, identifying resources and sources of support to enable us to do
this.

12.2 Reducing Health Inequalities

The CCG was chosen as a pilot site by NHS Right Care and NHS England to identify a number of
healthcare areas where there are potential opportunities for addressing equality and tackling health
inequalities. The ‘right care pack’ that was provided was considered by our Equality and Diversity
Group and the intelligence it provides is used to inform development of Equality Impact Assessments
for various programmes. The pack identified that people living in a number of areas of Bromley had
higher rates of emergency hospital admissions due to respiratory conditions. We used this
information in our keep well over winter campaign. Leaflets, providing clear information on how to

keep well over winter and get protected from the flu were posted to homes in those target areas.
Page | 54

Page 75



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

We also used intelligence in the pack to inform clinical training. Targeted training sessions within the
areas we would like to improve were held. Bromley unplanned hospitalisations for asthma were high
across the borough, this was discussed with Bromley’s Lead Practice Nurse and a session was run
for all Primary Care Nurses around prevention and managing respiratory conditions. Other sessions
are also being planned with Bromley GPs and helping them to build a practice area profile.

In March 2019, we took part in a national NHS England round table discussion to consider how the
health inequalities ambitions set out in the NHS Long Term Plan could be delivered. This included
sharing examples of good practice in Bromley and considering what tools and support would be
useful for NHS organisations to use to ensure they are making tangible reductions in health
inequalities. One of the key elements of this is community engagement and ensuring we are reaching
and hearing the voices of those most likely to have health inequalities and suffer poorer health
outcomes.

Over the last year, our multi-agency Equality and Diversity Group has monitored the CCG’s approach
to equality and diversity. Activity includes:

¢ Involving patients in the self-assessment of our Equality Delivery System (EDS2) return.

e Ensuring our engagement approach takes account of the requirements of the EDS2.

In the summer of 2019 we plan to involve patient representatives in a review of our equality and
diversity priorities and objectives.

12.3 Patientimpact on reducing health inequalities

There have been a number of improvements put in place by the CCGto help narrow the gap in health
inequalities, many of which have involved the voice of patients to inform and influence their
development. Sometimes it can take longer than the reporting year to see the impact of these
changes. Examples include:

e Improving health for people with learning disabilities - Doctors in Bromley are
encouraging people with learning disabilities to make sure they have their annual health check
with their GP. The check helps to keep them well and pick up any problems at an early stage.
In Bromley only half of those entitled to the check are actually having one. Through this
engagement we want to understand what is preventing people from having a check and what
we can put in place to make it easier to have one.

Page | 55

Page 76



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

e Primary Care Needs Assessment — to understand what local people need from their GP
services, we went to a variety of local groups that support people who we seldom hear from.
This included those with learning disabilities, mental health conditions and black, Asian and
minority ethnic communities.

e Improving care for people in residential homes — we interviewed residents and had a PAG
member on the procurement for a new GP service that will be provided to those in residential
and supportive housing. This is a vulnerable cohort of patients who have experience huge
variation in access, integration and proactive care.

e Improving access to primary care services — patients have informed online and digital
services available from GPs including virtual consultations and accessing appointments and
information online. Ten practices in Bromley are now in the process of piloting online
consultations. This is in the early stages of implementation and usage will be monitored to
monitor the number of appointment slots that are saved by providing online consultations. An
online consultation user group has been established for practices to share new ways of
working.

e Overthe counter prescribing proposals — We engaged the public on our plans to no longer
support the routine prescribing of over the counter medicines. This included proactively
identifying and reaching communities more likely to be impacted such as those on lower
incomes and the elderly. Since the introduction of these changes during this reporting year,
65,000 fewer prescriptions have been dispensed which has saved £257,000. This has also
likely to have freed up many GP appointments.

e Patientswere involved inthe development, design and evaluation of our proactive care
pathway. The pathway is part of our Integrated Care Network model of care. Patients with
complex health needs, who are at risk of hospital admissions are identified by their GP and
proactively cared for by a multi-disciplinary team of staff to help keep them well and living
independently at home. Since the new pathway started, 3,251 patients have been referred
from 42 GP practices. For patients where there have been previous emergency admissions to
hospital, this has reduced by 23.6%.

e Co-producing children's services - we have been working with young people and partners

across Bromley to co-produce improvements to emotional and mental wellbeing for children
and young people in Bromley. We plan to produce a robust and sustainable system of
support and treatment that improves the emotional wellbeing and mental health of the
population as a whole and provides evidence based services. We have reached young

Page | 56

Page 77



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

people in a variety of ways through schools, home schooling service, homelessness support
group, after school clubs, young carers and children with communication difficulties. Bromley
is one of only a small number of areas to be successful in gaining funding to introduce
specialist mental health support teams into schools. The pilot scheme will see £2.4m invested
in Bromley services over two years, including with a new approach to reduce waiting times for
services.

¢ Phlebotomy — engagement undertaken during 2018 and in previous year to inform accessibly
to phlebotomy services has seen a sharp increase in the availability of bookable blood test
appointments. There are now 36,144 additional bookable appointments available at a number
of GP surgeries.

12.4 AccessibleInformation

We are committed to making our information accessible to our local population. We have

information on our website which provides more detail on how we strive to do this. To
support people who may have visual impairments or for whom English is not their first language, we
have Browsealoud on our website (see section 10.13). It aims to improve access and participation for
people with Dyslexia, low literacy levels, English as a second language and those with mild visual
impairments. Online content can also be read aloud in multiple languages.

We will continue to use the software to support delivery of the Accessible Information Standard
requirements and provide data on usage in regular reports to our Governing Body. All of our printed
materials include how people can get the information in alternative formats.

We also consider the accessibility needs of people who attend our meetings — for example arranging
signers or hearing loops where required.

Page | 57

Page 78


https://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/commitment-to-accessibility.htm

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Sectidn 13

13. Looking ahead

With the publication of the NHS Long Term Plan in January 2019, the future delivery of health care is
very much focused joined up working, with organisations working together to deliver personalised and
effective care for patients. We are already working as a Bromley communications and engagement
system to consider how patients can get involved in the various programmes of integrated care that
are within the One Bromley partnership and this will need to continue over the next few years.

Priorities include:

e Ensure appropriate patient engagement in the delivery of programmes within the One Bromley
Integrated Care Partnership including the establishment of a new Patient Network.

e Continue with the co-production approach in the delivery of improved integrated services for
children and young people.

e Co-deliver the Ageing Well Strategy for Bromley.

e Enable patients to influence local primary care networks which will bring together GP practices
to serve larger practice populations.

¢ Provide advice to the new chair of the Maternity Voices Partnership to ensure the voices of
disadvantaged women are influencing the transformation of maternity care in Bromley.

¢ Deliver two patient conferences a year to enable patient representatives to provide feedback
on our strategic programmes.

e Engage on the schemes that aim to bring care out of hospital into the community including
services for Ear, Nose and Throat, respiratory and an outpatient transformation programme.

e Continue a focus on hearing the voices of the seldom heard to inform service delivery, with
the aim of helping to narrow the gap in health inequalities.

e Ensure we meet all our statutory and legal duties and seek to continuously improve.

Page | 58

Page 79



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

14. Assurance statement from Healthwatch Bromley

Healthwatch Bromley is pleased to be invited to comment on NHS Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group’s (CCG) Annual Engagement Report for 2018/19. We are also pleased with their commitment
to produce this report every year to evidence how they are meeting their legal duties to engage with
our local population. Healthwatch Bromley highly commends Bromley CCG for this report.

Over the last year, we have continued to have a constructive working relationship with Bromley CCG
and acknowledge the good work that has taken place to engage with patients and to ensure they
have a voice in the development and delivery of local services.

Of particular note we are pleased to see the patient advisory group being recognised as a key
facilitative engagement tool and that there are currently 195 members, and the introduction of the first
patient conference in 2019.

Holding providers to account for engaging patients is a key contractual process and we are delighted
to see responsibility being taken to ensure this happens and the engagement is effective and
meaningful. Through the CCG facilitated Bromley Communications and Engagement Network, the
CCG are able to collect information on engagement and target improvement. In addition it is
reassuring to see a commitment to engaging with young people, especially focusing on mental and
emotional wellbeing and supporting young people with special educational needs and disabilities.

Bromley continues to be demographically one of London's older boroughs and as suchit is vitally
important that the Ageing Well Strategy for Bromley has been developed jointly, and involved and

engaged local people to share their feedback and develop the strategy.

Healthwatch Bromley is assured that the CCG and the staff within the organisation have a very clear
vision for engagement with the public and are confident that this will be the case next year.

Mina Kakaiya
Operation Manager healthw tCh

Bromley

Page | 59

Page 80



NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

If you would like a copy of this report in another format, such as large print or
translated, please contact broccg.patientquery@nhs.netor call 020 39300100

NHS Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group
www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk
@NHSBromley CCG

Page | 60

Page 81


mailto:broccg.patientquery@nhs.net
http://www.bromleyccg.nhs.uk/

This page is left intentionally blank



NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

IHE LONDOMN BOROUG

cg abed

Integrated Commissioning Board — April 2019 — March 2020 Work Programme

July 19 Update DRAFT

Theme 1: Joint Commissioning Framework, Strategies and Projects
Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
1.1 Support and enable implementation | Collaborate on joint strategic initiatives to address the Achievement of Formal review of Nada On track
of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy priorities identified in the H&WB Strategy: delivery milestones progress — Lemic
(2018-2022) as the core framework for e Cancer and outcomes as October 2019
prioritising and shaping joint work e  Obesity described in the and March 2010
programmes to address needs and e Diabetes Health & Wellbeing
transform services in Bromley e Dementia Strategy.
e  Suicide prevention
e Homelessness
e Adults with a learning disability
e Drugs & alcohol in young people
e Youth violence
e Adolescent mental health
1.2 Develop, approve and implement To complete, approve & commence implementation: Formal approvals Approvals: Paul Ageing
joint commissioning strategies e Joint Ageing Well Strategy through LBB & CCG March 2019 Feven/ Well
o Joint strategy for adult mental health services governance. (AW and MH) ‘F],ames Strategy
ostgate being
To produce and approve joint commissioning strategies for: Implementation October 2019 f;,ﬁ";?f
e  People with learning disabilities commences & (LD) MH
e Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) progress review at 6 Strategy
monthly intervals. To be with
determined Member
(ASD) Task and
Finish
Group; LD
Strategy
on track
1.3 Joint market management of the e Conduct analysis of LBB and CCG placements Data analysis March/April 19 Paul On track
residential and nursing sector in ¢ Identify key needs from the residential and nursing market Feven/
Bromley o Develop and launch integrated market position statement Market position July/August g’%r:tZZte

9 wal| epuaby



NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

HE LONDOMN BOROUG

8 abed

Develop and implement discussions with providers in order | statement 2019
to successfully obtain VFM placements within Bromley

Develop joint approach to market oversight in terms of

quality and sector development

1.4 Commissioning Architecture (a) Design and implement a proposed model of integrated Approaches, models Paul On track
Further develop integrated commissioning, including a joint team, in the context of & leadership for Implementation | Feven/
Commissioning arrangements for wider reforms within the local health and social care future integrated — October 2019 James
health and social care system commissioning to March 2020 Postgate

arrangements and
Design a model and process for the future governance, appropriate
oversight and management of joint commissioning governance prepared
arrangements between the partner agencies and obtain and approved by
formal approvals. partner agencies
Jointly appoint to a single Director post to lead integrated
commissioning arrangements on behalf of both partner
agencies
Explore opportunities for the co-location of all members of
the integrated commissioning team on a single site

1.5 Commissioning Architecture (b) Develop systems and processes to integrate performance Commissioning Paul On track
Further develop and implement an reporting, outcomes measurement and quality assurance systems, processes Review progress | Feven/
Integrated Commissioning across jointly commissioned services and reporting are October 2019 James
framework increasingly Postgate

Develop joint arrangements to enable best practice and integrated.

innovation in service procurement across agencies

wherever possible Joint delivery of the
ICB work programme

Strengthen local arrangements/joint protocols to procure through effective

and monitor individual care placements (in or out of deployment of CCG

borough), sharing resources and expertise across health andLBB

and social care in an integrated approach. commissioning
resources on a
collaborative basis.

1.6 Commissioning Architecture (c) Develop and recommend proposals for investment of Resources reviewed April 2019 David On track
Collaborative Resource BCF/IBCF and S75 funded programmes against agreed and priorities agreed Bradshaw
Management joint commissioning priorities for 2019/20 for 2019/20

Receive and review performance, finance and programme | ICB received From April
update reports for initiatives supported through joint quarterly integrated 2019/ongoing




Gg abed

NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

HE LONDOMN BOROUG

resources

performance &
finance reports.
Remedial actions
taken where required

Theme 2: Services for Children & Young People

Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
2.1 Develop, approve and commence Prepare a comprehensive commissioning work Commissioning work | April 2019 Hilary In April/May, the
implementation of a programme for Children & Young People that draws programme scoped Rogers/ One Bromley
comprehensive together the broad range of health & social care and approved. Penny EXGC”“"S’ N
commissioning work programme service developments and initiatives in an integrated :gg;zvgf at ©
for approach. Implementation May 2019 onwards Children’s
Children & Young People commences Integrated
Partnership
April 2019 (ICP)
Multi-agency programme in
Consider scope and opportunities for the creation of workshop to consider Bromley. This
an Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) approach to the | ICP. P"°9Fatmmff
development and delivery of health and social care May 2019 \i,%r;ilsstrse:m:ur
services for Children & Young People. If approved, ICP which have
programme Formal review — been designed
development September 2019 in partnership
commences with key
providers.
2.2 Child & Mental Health Services Complete the co-production process for the design of | Implementation of New service in Paul Feven/ | On track,
(CAMHS) future service model for the Community Wellbeing the new service place by March James pending
Service (Tiers 1 and 2) model in 2021 Postgate decision at
collaboration with JES;C;‘;'V"} n
Finalise service specification for the future service service providers
model and co-production
partners
2.3 Special Educational Needs and Complete the preparation of a joint commissioning Health & social care | April 2019 Jared/Hilary | Working to
Disability strategy for SEND (1.2 above) and continue to full collaboration with SEND
(SEND) collaborate on the commissioning and delivery of SEND reform Ea””dersh'F_’
relevant SEND priorities and services. programme Cc‘)’:}%‘isasijgr']?;g
. . strategy for
Continue to support collaborative approaches to the Joint commissioning SEND has been




0g abed

NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

HE LONDOMN BOROUG

Theme 2: Services for Children & Young People

Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
implementation of SEND reforms strategy prepared, developed for
approved & 2019/20.
implementation
commenced.
2.4 Children Looked After (CLA) — Review joint commissioning arrangements for CLA, Review joint health June 2019 Janet Working to the
joint packages of care including the processes and resources that support and care services for Bailey/ Corporate
placement decisions for individuals, to ensure that the | CLA. James Parenting
needs of children are appropriately and effectively Postgate Board, a
met through a collaborative approach. Establish an September/October health offer for
enhanced health 2019 CLA
Complete a review of respite care provision & identify | offer for CLA, workstream
future service requirements/resources including care has been
leavers. established to
improve health
Provide an enhanced | September/October outcomes to
CAMHS offer for 2019 CLA and care
CLA and care leavers. As
leavers. part of this
September/October work,
2019 exploratory
Review short discussions

breaks/respite for
children and families
and set out a future
approach for these
services.

are underway
to establish an
improved
CAMHS offer
for CLA/care
leavers as a
priority. The
review of short
breaks/respite
is also
underway and
being led by a
commissioning
officer.




/8 abed

NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

IHE LONDOMN BOROUG

Theme 2: Services for Children & Young People

Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
2.5 SALT - review and commission Conduct needs analysis Review needs, Needs analysis — Paul Feven/ | On track with
new model Conduct gap analysis in terms of service and identify gap and April 19 James decision for
resources required propose new model Postgate 5)('601“ é've n
Propose new model of service of service New service in oy
place September
19
Theme 3: Integrated Care (Adults)
Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
3.1 Collaborate with health and social Enable and support initiatives for the progressive Enable and support Formal review | Angela The One
care partners across Bromley to integration of health and social care services between the ‘One Bromley’ — October Bhan/Mark | Bromley
enable the strategic development of partner agencies as ‘One Bromley’ in the context of programme to 2019 Chueng Integrated
the ‘One Bromley’ Integrated Care national drivers set out in the NHS Long Term Plan. achieve scheduled g:;tenership
Partnership integration goals in has been
19/20 established
with a single
Maintain and further develop the work of the Integrated | Increase the Review — One Bromley
Care Networks delivering the proactive care pathway numbers of people September Executive to
and range of 2019 lead changes.
conditions supported
through the ICNs
Support ‘One Bromley’ in prioritising the sustainable Reduction in .
delivery of urgent & emergency care services. emergency Review —
admissions to June,
hospital and delays in | September,
discharge from December
hospital 2019
Enhanced team
Progress implementation of an enhanced health & care | implemented & April 2019
support service for care homes, including the APMS contract
mobilisation of new arrangements for the delivery of mobilised
medical/GP support for care homes




3g abed

NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

HE LONDOMN BOROUG

Theme 3: Integrated Care (Adults)

Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
3.2 Personalised Care e  Support & promote commissioning initiatives that Increase in the range | Review — James Bromley CCG
enable the collaborative delivery of the NHS England of personalised care | December Postgate has met its
‘Universal Personalised Care’ approach across different | arrangements 2019 targets to
settings/range of needs: available and the m:rr::::lised
- Shared decision-making numbers of people Eare in the
- Enabling choice accessing. borough. All
- Personalised care and support planning continuing
- Social prescribing and community based support healthcare
- Supported self-management (CHC)
- Personal health budgets/Direct services are
payments/integrated personal budgets now provided
via a personal
health budget
as a default. A
project officer
is now in place
and will be
exploring joint
LBB/CCG
personalisation
in order t meet
the December
2019 deadline.
3.3 End of Life Care (EoLC): Commission EoLC services that enable: Support PMS Review — James On track
Improve identification of people e Primary Medical Services (EoLC registers, Advanced services delivery, September Postgate/
coming care plans, MDT reviews) in place with increased 2019 Daniel
to the end of their life; Enable the numbers on primary Knight
integration, personalisation & e  Promote ‘Coordinate My Care’ (CMC) for advanced care registers with
co-ordination of EoLC services care plans advanced care plans
& MDT reviews
e @Home pathway development to provide alternatives to
hospital based services Increase in CMC Review —
utilisation October 2019
¢ Implementation of enhanced health & care support
team in care homes (see 3.1 above) Implement pathway &
reduction in hospital October 2019
emergency /EOLC
admissions




68 abed

NHS

Bromley

Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

HE LONDOMN BOROUG

Theme 3: Integrated Care (Adults)

Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
Implement enhanced | April 2019
team
3.4 Domiciliary Care e Review and recommission service Needs addressed Service Model | Paul Feven/ | On track
e Joint approach across LBB (adults and children) and within new — September James
CCG commissioning 19 Postgate
Sustainable market arrangements arrangement
Revised spec
Joint approach in Dec 19
place
2021 new
service
3.5 Learning Disabilities e Collaborate locally and with south east London Continue to actively LD Strategy — | Paul Feven/ | On track
colleagues on the Transforming Care Programme case manage Sept 19 James
(TCP), ensuring that an appropriate range of services individual clients Postgate
are commissioned to meet the identified needs of within the TCP, Transformation
people with learning disabilities. enabling individuals Board
to be appropriately proposals —
e Review as part of LD Strategy and LBB Transformation | supported outside Sept 19
Programme NHS facilities where
possible
3.6 Adult Mental Health e Progress the implementation of the Joint Strategy for Scope to transform April 19 Paul Feven/ | Currently
Adult Mental Health Services (see 2.1 — once service delivery James awaiting final
approved), including: through an Integrated Postgate member
Care Partnership oversight via
PDS Task and
approach Finish Group
Prevention and early
intervention services
Recovery and
rehabilitation -
including s117
3.7 Occupational Therapy e Review across health and social care, potentially via Review of provision Paper to ICB Kim Carey/ | On track
joint workshop involving LBB, CCG and hospital and outcomes for September Angela
service users 2019 Bhan




06 abed

NHS

Bromley
Clinical Commissioning Group

Brombey

THE LONDON BOROUGH

Review provision across health and social care

Priority area Actions Success Criteria Timescale Lead Update
3.8 Community Equipment e Joint action to manage budgetary pressures Review of provision Paper to ICB — | Kim Carey/ | On track
e Review process for issuing equipment and outcomes for December Angela
. service users 2019 Bhan




Report No.
ECHS19070

Agenda Item 12a

London Borough of Bromley

Decision Maker:

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Date: Thursday 18t July 2019
Title: Collaborative working — Bromley CCG and LBB Public Health
Contact Officer: Dr Nada Lemic, Director of Public Health
Tel: 020 8313 4220 E-mail: Nada.Lemic@bromley.gov.uk
Dr Angela Bhan, Managing Director, NHS Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group
Tel: 020 3930 0102 E-mail: Angela.bhan@nhs.net
Ward: Borough-wide
1.  Summary

1.1 The report presents the current collaborative framework and arrangements between
Bromley CCG and LBB Public Health.

2. Reason for Report going to Health and Wellbeing Board

2.1. The recent review by the Department of Health and Social Care recommended that the
NHS worked much more closely with local authorities on public health so that commissioning
is more joined-up and prevention embedded into a wider range of health services.

2.2. To present the current joint working and collaboration in place between Bromley CCG
and Public Health this is already contributing to the above recommendation.

2.3. To provide an opportunity for the Health and Wellbeing Board to appraise the existing
partnership arrangement and to consider further opportunities for collaboration, particularly in
the context of the delivery of key priority areas identified within the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.

3. SPECIFIC ACTION REQUIRED BY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AND ITS
CONSTITUENT PARTNER ORGANISATIONS

3.1 The HWB is asked to:

1) Note the range of collaboration and partnership working between Bromley CCG
and Public Health.

2) Consider further collaboration and joint working, focusing on delivery of the key
priority areas identified within the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

1 Page 91


mailto:Nada.Lemic@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:Angela.bhan@nhs.net

Health & Wellbeing Strateqy

The Health & Wellbeing Strategy outlines the priorities (based on the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment) agreed by the Health & Wellbeing Board together with the aims and expected
outcomes.

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost

2. Ongoing costs: No Cost

3. Total savings: Not Applicable

4. Budget host organisation: Not Applicable
5. Source of funding: Not Applicable

6. Beneficiary/beneficiaries of any savings: Not Applicable

Supporting Public Health Outcome Indicator(s)

The process for identifying priorities has been informed by reviewing data from the 2017 JSNA and
the online Public Health England resource, Public Health Outcomes Framework.

2 Page 92



COMMENTARY

4.1 The Section 75 agreement between Bromley CCG and Public Health provides the
framework for collaboration and mutual support in delivering the key functions of public
health in local authority (see Appendix).

4.2 The well-established agreement facilitates the strong link with CCG and their support
to include health protection and medicines management.

4.3 Set out below are the evidence of joint working and existing partnership between
Bromley CCG and Public Health under the current arrangement.

JOINT WORKING AND COLLABORATION
5.1. Children and Young People

e CCG support shaping the delivery of the Healthy Child Programme in Bromley
and participate in the Health Support to Schools Steering Group and the Infant
Feeding Strategic Group

e CCG provides clinical advice and support to the procurement of the new 0-19
Public Health Nursing Service and the annual commissioning of Public Health
and Early Intervention and Family Support programmes delivered through
Children and Family Centres

e Public Health supports the CCG in commissioning of CAMHS, paediatric and
maternity service

e Safeguarding — Public Health lead on Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP)

5.2. Adults

e Public Health and CCG work jointly on the implementation of South London
prevention initiatives, including Tier 3 Obesity pilot weight management
programme, NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme, Diabetes Structured
Education.

e Public Health provides support for commissioning of cardiology services,
including cardiac rehabilitation

e CCG supports the Public Health Vascular Prevention Programme through some
direct commissioning which includes: Diabetes service (which includes areas of
prevention); Cardiac Rehabilitation and Exercise programmes.

e There is a joint approach to users of substances who have co-occurring mental
health and alcohol/drug use conditions (COMHAD).

e CCG and Public Health work together on the implementation of the NHS England
CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation). This includes incorporating
smoking and alcohol brief advice indicators for Acute, Community and Mental Health
Providers into CCG contracts.

e CCG supports PH programmes by ensuring Making Every Contact Counts are
embedded in their provider contracts and service specifications.

e Public Health compiles the GP practice profiles along with other data analysis
that support CCG commissioning.

5.3. Pathway developments

e CCG act as a key stakeholder and working with Public Health, leads on pathway
development for prevention of long term conditions including obesity, respiratory,
diabetes, cardiovascular disease and cancer.

3 Page 93



Cancer and Diabetes are priorities within the Health and Well-being Strategy and
CCG and Public Health have developed joint action plans to address key areas
of prevention and early intervention e.g. new cervical screening initiative in
primary care.

CCG provides clinical leadership and support for developing and initiating a
primary care alcohol pathway and model for early identification and intervention
Clinical and commissioning support for managing complex and vulnerable adults
who are frequent attendees

Public Health and CCG work jointly on prevention of sexually transmitted
diseases (STIs). The CCG commissioned a prevention pathway of offering STI
testing and LARC (long acting reversible contraception) to women at the time of
booking a termination appointment.

5.4 Other joint initiatives

Director of Public Health is a member of the CCG Clinical Executive at which PH
commissioning intensions and developments are discussed and from which CCG
clinical input and advice are sought. Equally, through the Clinical Executive,
Public Health support and activities are agreed.

There has been a long-term joint working on the local Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and the Health and Well-being Strategy.

CCG Managing Director chairs the local Health Protection Committee and the
local Immunisation group and has direct influence over the management and
handling of issues arisen from these fora.

CCG supports immunisation and screening programmes through working with
GP practices and ensuring good uptake.

Joint working on screening and immunisation has ensured excellent results and
improved outcomes — Bromley is the third best for screening uptake, best for over
65 year old flu vaccination uptake and top for MMR vaccination in London.

Public Health Infection prevention nurse leads on infection control for the CCG
Medicine management team from the CCG provides advice and support to PH
on a range of prescribing matters.

CCG supports and has direct input into Public Health’s clinical governance
framework. This is done through the CCG’s Head of Medicine Management who
is a standing member of the Public Health Clinical Governance Advisory Group.
Clinical and service quality assurance from CCG via the CCG quality framework
(Clinical Quality Review Group) on PH commissioned services

Public Health provides support to the CCG on management of the Individual
Funding Requests (IFR) and development of the SEL Treatment Access Policy.
Delivery of joint training to primary care — CCG and Public Health co-ordinate
training events for primary care e.g. Academic Half days.

5.5. Building on the breadths of the above joint working and collaboration, the Health
and Well-being Board may wish to consider how this could be further strengthened and
used to support the deliverly of the Health and Well-being Strategy priorities.

6. IMPACT ON VULNERABLE PEOPLE AND CHILDREN

6.1 Improvements to population health will have a positive impact on the individual health
of vulnerable people and children.

4 Page 94



10.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Not Applicable.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 The production of a JHWS has been a statutory requirement of upper tier local
authorities and partners since the Health and Social Care Act (2012).

IMPLICATIONS FOR OTHER GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS, BOARDS AND
PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS, INCLUDING ANY POLICY AND FINANCIAL
CHANGES, REQUIRED TO PROCESS THE ITEM

Not Applicable.
COMMENT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF AUTHOR ORGANISATION

Not Applicable.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Financial Implications, Implications for Other Governance
Arrangements, Boards and Partnership Arrangements,
including any Policy and Financial Changes, required to
Process the ltem, and Comment from the Director of Public

Health
Background Documents: Not Applicable
(Access via Contact
Officer)

5 Page 95




This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 12b

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
ECHS19071

Decision Maker: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Date: THURSDAY 18™ JULY 2019
Title: SPECIAL FREE SCHOOL: INFORMATION PAPER
Contact Officer: Debi Christie, Head of Service: Special Educational Needs

Education, Care and Health Services, London Borough of Bromley
Tel: 020 8461 7896 E-mail: debi.christie@bromley.gov.uk

Ward: Borough-wide

1. SUMMARY

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to receive this information report on the Special Free
School programme in Bromley.

2. REASON FOR REPORT GOING TO HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

To be considered under JSNA Section 4: Children and young people with established needs

3. SPECIFIC ACTION REQUIRED BY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AND ITS
CONSTITUENT PARTNER ORGANISATIONS

Report provided for information. LB Bromley and Bromley CCG are the lead agencies in the
local area.

1 Page 97



Health & Wellbeing Strateqgy

1. Related priority: [Delete as appropriate] Children with Complex Needs and Disabilities Children
with Mental and Emotional Health Problems

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:
2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:
3. Total savings: Not Applicable:

4. Budget host organisation:

5. Source of funding:

6. Beneficiary/beneficiaries of any savings:

Supporting Public Health Outcome Indicator(s)

Not Applicable:

2 Page 98



4.1

411

41.2

41.3

4.2

4.2.1

5.1

5.2

COMMENTARY
BACKGROUND

The London Borough of Bromley (LBB), NHS Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group (BCCG) and Bromley Parent Voice (BPV) share a strong and clearly
stated commitment to improving the education, health and wellbeing outcomes
for children and young people who have special educational needs and/or
disabilities (SEND). The commitment is implemented through effective joint
governance (SEND Governance Board) which is driving and sustaining rapid
improvement. Bromley aspires to provide outstanding services for children
and young people which keep them safe, give them the right help at the right
time in their lives and which achieve positive outcomes for their journey into
adulthood.

The SEND Strategic Vision and Priorities 2018 — 2019 includes Priority 3: A
suitable range of local specialist provision is available to meet the needs of
children and young people with complex needs. The proposed establishment
of a new special free school and centre of excellence is in pursuance of this
priority area.

In summer 2018, the DfE launched the next wave of free school bids inviting

Local Authorities to submit an expression of interest (EOI) for a special school

(no more than one) which:

e demonstrates local need;

¢ helps manage pressure on High Needs Funding;

e does not create new provision for children who would otherwise be
attending a mainstream school.

EXPRESSION OF INTEREST (EOI) FROM BROMLEY

Bromley’s EOI sought to establish a 54-place junior special school for children
with autistic spectrum disorders (ASD) and associated learning difficulties such
as high anxiety and/or behaviour that challenges.

SUFFICIENCY OF PROVISION

Nationally and locally, there has been a significant increase in the number of
children with a complexity and severity of needs which warrant an education,
health and care (EHC) assessment and EHC plan which determines the
special educational provision the child needs. Children’s needs and the
overall increase in the child population are resulting in more children requiring
special education provision.

Bromley has responded by expanding its good local special schools and
developing additionally resourced provision (ARP) in mainstream schools,
creating 236 additional places since 2010. However, there is a gap in local
provision for children with ASD and associated learning difficulties. This cohort
of children is well-provided for in Key Stage 1 (through special schools ARPs)
but three of the ARPs are in infant schools so a significant number of children
(currently 66) are placed in non-maintained and independent schools from the

3 Page 99



5.3

6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

age of 7. Once settled, most children remain in that placement until they leave
educational provision at age 19 or 25.

Glebe School (secondary special school) has been expanded to provide for

children with a higher level of need including ASD. However a gap remains at
Key Stage 2. Bromley’s free school proposal, therefore, focuses on filling that
gap and developing a pathway through primary and into secondary education.

PARENTS’ VIEWS

Parents consistently highlight the gap in local provision for children with ASD
and some parents report feeling that their children are not always welcome in
the local community and within local schools. They point out that lengthy home
to school travel can be particularly distressing for children with ASD. Parents
also want provision which supports and develops children’s wider
development, including health, care and social needs, by provided integrated
therapies and wrap around activities outside the school day. This proposal
offers the opportunity to develop such provision locally so that children can
grow up and go to school within their local community.

COST

The average cost of a specialist placement in a non-maintained or
independent day school is £37,000 compared with £27,000 for similar state
maintained special schools locally. Developing local provision to meet the
needs of this cohort of children is, therefore, also cost effective, particularly if
children then remain in local secondary education.

LOCATION

To support the EOI, the LA is asked to identify a proposed location and site
and the DfE advises that preference will be given to proposals where the site
offers value for money and the timely opening of the provision.

Bromley owns the site and building for the Hawes Down Centre (Hawes Lane,
West Wickham) which is part of a campus with Hawes Down Primary School
(which has an ARP) and Glebe School offering synergy with the aims for the
proposed provision. In addition to the potential benefits of its location, the site
is available and is likely to need little adaptation. Langley Park Primary School
occupied the site until August 2018 (while their new building was completed)
and the ESFA had carried out works to form classrooms. At the same time,
the building has been used by voluntary sector groups providing short breaks
for children with SEN/D so there are sensory and soft play facilities installed.

OUTCOME OF THE SUBMISSION

Bromley Council was notified by the DfE in March 2019 that it was one of 39
local authorities nationally that had been successful in its bid to be part of the
joint special and AP free school wave. Only five London boroughs are included
in this wave (Bromley, Bexley, Newham, Kingston on Thames, and Richmond
on Thames).

4 Page 100



9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

12.

Interested Academy Trusts (“proposer groups”) now have the opportunity to
submit an application to open new schools in these areas based on
specifications written by the local authorities. Trusts have until the end of
September to submit their bids to the DfE.

Evaluation of the bids will take place in the Autumn and will be made in
partnership with the DfE and the local authority. Bromley Council plans to fully
include the CCG, Bromley Parent Voice and the local area Autism Partnership
in the evaluation process.

The successful Trusts will not be announced until Winter 2019/20.

ENGAGEMENT EVENT

An engagement event for Trusts interested in bidding to provide the new
special free school was held on 22nd May at the Hawes Down Centre. There
were 32 attendess 17 of whom were representing 7 individual Trusts.
Presentations were made by the local authority and Bromley Parent Voice to
expand on the vision in our specification.

By being based at the Hawes Down Centre, attendees were able to tour the
proposed site for the new school. Representatives from across the local area
were also in attendance and took part in a networking opportunity with the
interested Trusts to finish the event.

NEXT STEPS

A further engagement event is planned for 4" September to provide interested
Trusts with more information on our proposal to create a Multi-Agency Centre
of Excellence at the Hawes Down Centre as well as the role and requirements
of an additionally commissioned outreach service which will be developed with
the successful Trust to complement the support services already available in
Bromley.

The Centre of Excellence will coordinate and deliver a range of support, advice
activities and training to children and young people with autism and their
families. It will address the gaps in the local area identified by parents and
famliies inclusing social opportunities and training for parents in partnership
with professionals. It will deliver the action plan from the Autsim Partnership
Group which will provide support and oversight of the Centre to ensure it can
respond to changing needs in the borough and complement services and
support already available.

The event will also provide an opportunity for interested Trusts to meet with
parent and local area representatives to ensure their views help shape their
bids.

IMPACT ON VULNERABLE PEOPLE AND CHILDREN

5 Page 101



13.

14.

Children and young people with Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities
are amongst the most vulnerable in the Borough. Our ongoing work to develop
and improve services is monitored by the SEND Governance Board to ensure
its impact in improving outcomes.

IMPLICATIONS FOR OTHER GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS, BOARDS
AND PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS, INCLUDING ANY POLICY AND
FINANCIAL CHANGES, REQUIRED TO PROCESS THE ITEM

SEND Governance Board continues to report to the Children’s Executive Board
as part of its formal governance arrangements.

COMMENT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION, LB BROMLEY

Bromley local authority, Bromley CCG and our partners are committed to
ensuring that children and young people aged 0 to 25 years, who have special
educational needs and/or disabilities, are well supported and empowered to
lead full and rewarding lives.

Comments are welcomed from the Health and Wellbeing Board on the proposal
to establish a special free school and centre of excellence in order to further
improve the services and support available to children and young people with
SEND and their families.

Non-Applicable Financial, Legal implications
Sections:

Background Documents: | N/A
(Access via Contact
Officer)

6 Page 102




Report No.
CSD19120

Agenda Item 13

London Borough of Bromley

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Thursday 18t July 2019

Non Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME

Joanne Partridge, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 0208 461 7694 E-mail joanne.partridge@bromley.gov.uk

Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

N/A

1. Reason for report

1.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to review its work programme and to consider
progress on matters outstanding from previous meetings of the Board.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to:

1) Consider matters outstanding from previous meetings; and,

2) Review its work programme, indicating any changes required.

1 Page 103



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not Applicable

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy: As part of the Excellent Council workstream within Building a
Better Bromley, the Health and Wellbeing Board should plan and prioritise its workload to
achieve the most effective outcomes.

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council

Financial

1.  Cost of proposal: No Cost

Ongoing costs: Not Applicable

Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services
Total current budget for this head: £358,740

Source of funding: Revenue budget

0o & w0 N

taff

‘

Number of staff (current and additional): 8 posts (6.79 fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Maintaining the Board’s work
programme takes less than an hour per meeting

Legal
1. Legal Requirement: None.

2. Call-in: Not Applicable. This report does not involve an executive decision

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: None.

Customer Impact

1.  Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): This report is intended
primarily for the benefit of members of this Board to use in controlling their work.

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2.  Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not Applicable

2 Page 104



3. COMMENTARY

3.1 The Matters Outstanding table updates Board Members on “live” matters arising from previous
meetings and is attached at Appendix 1.

3.2 The Health and Wellbeing Board’s Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. Meetings are
scheduled to be held approximately two weeks after Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group
Board meetings to facilitate the feedback mechanism from the Bromley Clinical Commissioning
Group to the Health and Wellbeing Board. In approving the Work Programme, Board Members
will need to be satisfied that priority issues are being addressed in line with the priorities set out
in the Board’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy and Terms of Reference which were approved by
Council in April 2013.

3.3 The Constitution of the Health and Wellbeing Board is provided at Appendix 3.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children and
Policy/Financial/Legal/Personnel Implications

Background Documents: Previous matters arising reports and minutes of meetings.

3 Page 105



Health and Wellbeing Board: Matters Outstanding / Action List

APPENDIX 1

Agenda ltem Action Officer Update Status
Minute 3 The LBB Communications Executive agreed to LBB This was referred to the CCG, who Completed
16t May 2019 feedback to the authors of the One Bromley — Communications | produce the newsletter.
Stakeholder Briefing, the suggested inclusion of Executive
Minutes of the Previous the Voluntary Sector Strategic Network (VSSN)
Meeting as a partner.
Minute 7 The Director: Adult Social Care agreed that a LBB Director: It is confirmed that the underspends in | Completed
16t May 2019 response would be provided to the Board in Adult Social Care | the BCF and iBCF can be carried
relation to the Quarter 4 underspends of £750k forward to fund demands within this
Better Care Fund and (BCF) and £1.5m (iBCF). financial year. Further information in
Improved Better Care relation to the Disabled Facilities Grant
Fund was circulated to Board Members via
email on 8™ July 2019.
The Head of Early Intervention, Prevention and Head of Early Information relating to the BCF Completed
Community Services Commissioning agreed to Intervention, Employment and Education scheme
Confirm figures in relation to: Prevention and was circulated to Board Members via
- the BCF Employment and Education scheme, Community email on 8™ July 2019.
regarding employment targets and employer Services
engagement, and Commissioning An Innovation Fund bid has been
- further information on the collaboration with submitted and approved for the
Bromley and Croydon’s Women'’s Aid to develop Bromley Well Mental Wellbeing and
n a support group for women subject to domestic Bromley and Croydon Women’s Aid
Q violence experiencing common mental health support group.
% problems.
3 Minute 9 Response to questions raised by Board Members | LBB Head of A copy of the questions and responses | Completed
O? 16t May 2019 in relation to the Special Educational Needs and Service: Special was provided at Appendix A of the
Disability (SEND) Update report to be provided by | Educational minutes of the meeting.
Special Educational the Head of Service: Special Educational Needs Needs / Director
Needs and Disability and Director of Education of Education
(SEND) Update




Minute 14
16t May 2019

Ramadan 2019 - A Guide
for Schools

Information to be provided as to how the

document was distributed to schools, and if it was

known how many schools had used the
document.

Clerk

The LBB Head of Service for Early
Years, Schools Standards and Adult
Education confirmed that the document
had been circulated to schools via the
School Circular, and to members of the
SACRE. The document was also
loaded on to the Fronter system for
schools to access it.

There was no data available regarding
the number of schools that had used
the document. However, the LBB RE
Advisor would be asked to gather
feedback on the document from
schools during RE Network meetings.

In progress

/0T abed




APPENDIX 2

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

WORK PROGRAMME

21st November 2019

Health and Wellbeing Strategy: JSNA Priority Areas

Dr Nada Lemic

Update on DToC Performance

Danielle Burnage

Better Care Fund and Improved Better Care Fund Performance update —
Q1 and Q2

Kelly Sylvester

Verbal Update on Implementation of the Recommendations of the Falls
Task and Finish Group

Dr Nada Lemic / Mark Cheung

Ravensbourne School’s Period Poverty Pilot Scheme: Update

Dr Nada Lemic

Bromley Winter Assurance Plan: Update

Dr Angela Bhan / Clive Moss (CCGQG)

Bromley Winter Assurance Plan

Bulent Djouma

Bromley Local CAMHS Transformation Plan

James Postgate (CCG)

Ageing Well in Bromley Update

Kelly Sylvester / Gerry Clark

Loneliness Summit Report

Denise Mantell

Trailblazer Programme Update

James Postgate (CCG)

Bromley Health and Wellbeing Centre Update

Phil Chubb

Bromley Communications and Engagement Network — Activity Report

Susie Clark / Tim Spilsbury

Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report

Lynn Sellwood

Bromley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report

Jim Gamble / Joanna Gambhir /
Kerry Davies

Work Programme and Matters Outstanding

Democratic Services

30t January 2020

Annual Public Health Report

Dr Nada Lemic

Update on DToC Performance

Danielle Burnage

Better Care Fund and Improved Better Care Fund Performance update —
Q3

Kelly Sylvester

Verbal Update on Implementation of the Recommendations of the Falls
Task and Finish Group

Dr Nada Lemic / Mark Cheung

FGM Update

Mimi Morris-Cotterill

Communications Update

Susie Clark

Bromley Winter Assurance Plan Update

Clive Moss

Primary Care Commissioning Update

Dr Angela Bhan / Dr Andrew Parson

Work Programme and Matters Outstanding

Democratic Services

19t March 2020

Update on DToC Performance

Danielle Burnage

Verbal Update on Implementation of the Recommendations of the Falls
Task and Finish Group

Dr Nada Lemic / Mark Cheung

Integrated Commissioning Board Update

CCG / Paul Feven

Ageing Well in Bromley Update

Kelly Sylvester / Gerry Clark

Work Programme and Matters Outstanding

Democratic Services

May 2020 (TBC)

Update on DToC Performance

Danielle Burnage

Better Care Fund and Improved Better Care Fund Performance update —
Q4

Kelly Sylvester

Verbal Update on Implementation of the Recommendations of the Falls
Task and Finish Group

Dr Nada Lemic / Mark Cheung

Integrated Commissioning Board Update

CCG / Paul Feven

Ageing Well in Bromley Update

Kelly Sylvester / Gerry Clark

Work Programme and Matters Outstanding

Democratic Services

Unprogrammed Outstanding Items:

Mental Health Strategic Partnership Update (Harvey Guntrip)

Elective Orthopaedic Centres (CCG)

Improvements in Services for Dementia Suffers (LBB/CCG)

Homeless and Vulnerable People on Bromley Streets: Signposting Support for the Public (referral from Safer

Bromley Partnership)

Page 108




APPENDIX 3
LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY
HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Constitution

(11 Elected Members, including one representative from each of the two Opposition Parties; the two
statutory Chief Officers (without voting rights); two representatives from the Clinical Commissioning
Group (with voting rights); a Health Watch representative (with voting rights) and a representative
from the Voluntary Sector (with voting rights). The Chairman of the Board will be an Elected Member
appointed by the Leader. The quorum is one-third of Members of the Board providing that elected
Members represent at least one half of those present. Substitution is permitted. Other members
without voting rights can be co-opted as necessary.

1.

Providing borough-wide strategic leadership to public health, health commissioning and adults
and children’s social care commissioning, acting as a focal point for determining and agreeing
health and wellbeing outcomes and resolving any related conflicts.

. Commissioning and publishing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) under the

Health and Social Care Act.

Commissioning and publishing a Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) — a high level
strategic plan that identifies, from the JSNA and the national outcomes frameworks, needs and
priority outcomes across the local population, which it will expect to see, reflected in local
commissioning plans.

Receiving the annual CCG commissioning plan for comment, with the reserved powers to refer
the CCG commissioning plan to the NHS Commissioning Board should it not address
sufficiently the priorities given by the JSNA.

Holding to account all areas of the Council, and other stakeholders as appropriate, to ensure
their annual plans reflect the priorities identified within the JSNA.

Supporting joint commissioning and pooled budget arrangements where it is agreed by the
Board that this is appropriate.

. Promoting integration and joint working in health and social care across the borough.

Involving users and the public, including to communicate and explain the JHWS to local
organisations and residents.

Monitor the outcomes and goals set out in the JHWS and use its authority to ensure that the
public health, health commissioning and adults and children’s commissioning and delivery
plans of member organisations accurately reflect the Strategy and are integrated across the
Borough.

10.Undertaking and overseeing mandatory duties on behalf of the Secretary of State for Health

and given to Health and Wellbeing Boards as required by Parliament.

11.Other such functions as may be delegated to the Board by the Council or Executive as

appropriate.

7 Page 109



This page is left intentionally blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16th May 2019
	Minutes
	 Appendix A

	5 Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group: Annual Engagement Report 2018/19
	Bromley Annual Engagement Plan Final 2019

	6 Integrated Commissioning Board Update
	12a Collaborative working - Bromley CCG and LBB Public Health
	12b Special Free School
	13 Matters Outstanding and Work Programme

